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Item 1. BUSINESS

Defined Terms

Except where the context requires otherwise, in this Annual Report on Form 1-K (this “Annual Report”):

” . ”

“Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to The Gladstone Companies, Inc., formerly known as Gladstone Holding Corporation until a name change
effective September 14, 2018, and its consolidated subsidiaries, including the Administrator Subsidiary, the Adviser Subsidiary and the Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary;

“1940 Act” refers to the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended;
“Advisers Act” refers to the investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended;

“Administrator Subsidiary” refers to Gladstone Administration, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that currently provides
administrative services to the Existing Gladstone Funds;

“Adviser Subsidiary” refers to Gladstone Management Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a registered investment adviser
that currently advises the Existing Gladstone Funds;

“BDC? refers to a business development company regulated under the 1940 Act;

“Broker-Dealer Subsidiary” refers to Gladstone Securities LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that is registered as a broker dealer with
the SEC and is a member of FINRA and insured by the SIPC and provides certain investment banking, mortgage placement and dealer manager
services to the Existing Gladstone Funds;

“Code” refers to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;
“Existing Gladstone Funds” refers to GAIN, GLAD, GOOD and LAND, each of which is managed by the Adviser Subsidiary;
“FINRA? refers to the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.;

“Future Gladstone Funds” refers to the three new funds that we expect to launch and manage through the Adviser Subsidiary: Gladstone Retail,
Gladstone Farming and Gladstone Partners;

“GAIN” refers to Gladstone Investment Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (Nasdaq: GAIN);
“GLAD?” refers to Gladstone Capital Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (Nasdaq: GLAD);
“Gladstone BDCs” and “our BDCs” refers collectively to GAIN and GLAD;

“Gladstone Farming” refers to Gladstone Farming L.P., a limited partnership to be formed in Delaware that is expected to be a privately offered fund
that invests in agricultural operations in the United States;

“Gladstone Partners” refers to Gladstone Partners L.P., a Delaware limited partnership that is expected to be a privately offered fund that will invest
alone or co-invest in new portfolio companies with the Gladstone BDCs;

“Gladstone REITs” refers collectively to LAND and GOOD;

“Gladstone Retail” refers to Gladstone Retail Corporation, a corporation formed in Maryland in 2020 that is expected to be a REIT that invests in retail
properties;

“GOOD” refers to Gladstone Commercial Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (Nasdaq: GOOD);
“LAND?” refers to Gladstone Land Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (Nasdaq: LAND);

“lower middle market” generally refers to companies with annual EBITDA of $3 million to $20 million;

“our funds” refers to the Existing Gladstone Funds and/or the Future Gladstone Funds, as the context may require;
“REIT” refers to a real estate investment trust under Section 856 of the Code;

“SEC” refers to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission;

“SIPC” refers to the Securities Investor Protection Corporation; and

“TGC LTD” refers to The Gladstone Companies, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company, controlled by our Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, David Gladstone, which currently owns all of our outstanding shares of common stock.



Performance Information Used in this Annual Report
Except where the context requires otherwise, in this Annual Report:
. “assets under management” is defined as the sum of the total assets of the Existing Gladstone Funds;

. “incentive fees” refers to performance-based fees that the Adviser Subsidiary earns for advisory services provided to our funds, and for the Existing
Gladstone Funds, generally consist of two parts: an income-based incentive fee and a capital gains-based incentive fee;

. “investment advisory fees” (also referred to throughout this Annual Report as “base management fees”) refer to fees that the Adviser Subsidiary earns
for advisory services provided to the Existing Gladstone Funds, which are generally based on a measure of adjusted gross assets for the Existing
Gladstone Funds;

. “EBITDA” refers to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; and

. “hurdle rate” refers to a specified minimum rate of return on investments that a fund must exceed in order for the Adviser Subsidiary to receive certain
incentive fees.

Many of the terms used in this Annual Report, including assets under management, may differ from the calculations of other asset managers and as a result
this measure may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other asset managers. In addition, our definition of assets under management is not based on any
definition of assets under management that is set forth in the agreements governing the funds that we manage.

Overview

We were formed on December 7, 2009 as a Delaware corporation to continue the asset management business conducted through predecessor entities since
2001. Our sole stockholder is TGC LTD, which is controlled by David Gladstone, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer.

Through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, we are an independent United States alternative asset manager with assets under management of approximately
$3.0 billion as of June 30, 2020. Our alternative asset management businesses include the management, through our Adviser Subsidiary, of (1) GAIN, a BDC that primarily
invests in debt and equity securities of lower middle market private businesses operating in the United States (including in connection with management buyouts,
recapitalization or, to a lesser extent, refinancing of existing debt facilities); (2) GLAD, a BDC that primarily invests in debt securities of established private lower middle
market companies in the United States; (3) GOOD, a REIT that focuses on acquiring, owning and managing primarily office and industrial properties in the United States; and
(4) LAND, a REIT that focuses on acquiring, owning and leasing farmland in the United States. We also provide various administrative and financial services, including
investment banking, due diligence, dealer manager, mortgage placement, and other financial services through our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary.

We have grown our assets under management significantly, from approximately $133.2 million as of September 30, 2001 to approximately $3.0 billion as of
June 30, 2020, representing a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR?”) of approximately 18%. Our Adviser Subsidiary oversees the investments of the four Existing Gladstone
Funds which have collectively invested approximately $5.9 billion in 594 businesses or properties through June 30, 2020. As of June 30, 2020, we had 28 executive officers,
managing directors and directors and also employed 41 other investment and administrative professionals through our Adviser Subsidiary and Administrator Subsidiary at our
headquarters in McLean, Virginia (a suburb of Washington, D.C.) and our offices in New York, New York, Chicago, Illinois, Seattle, Washington, Dallas, Texas and Salinas,
California. All such personnel are directly employed by either our Adviser Subsidiary or our Administrator Subsidiary.

We seek to deliver superior returns to investors in our funds through a disciplined, value-oriented investment approach. We believe that this investment
approach, implemented across our broad and expanding range of alternative asset classes and investment strategies, helps provide stability and predictability to our business
over different economic cycles and has contributed to our growth of assets under management over an extended period of time. Our investment personnel have cultivated strong
relationships with clients in our financial advisory business through our Adviser Subsidiary, where we endeavor to provide objective and insightful solutions and advice that our
clients can trust. We believe our scaled, diversified businesses, coupled with our long track record of investment performance, proven investment approach and strong client
relationships, position us to continue to perform well in a variety of market conditions, expand our assets under management and add complementary businesses.
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Assets Under Management

Assets under management were $3.0 billion as of June 30, 2020, an increase of $319 million, or 12%, compared to $2.7 billion at June 30, 2019. The
following table sets forth assets under management (by Existing Gladstone Fund) as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

June 30, June 30,

(in millions) 2020 2019
GAIN $ 570.67 $ 641.95
GLAD 457.72 415.34
GOOD 1,086.05 969.79
LAND 856.69 628.72
Other Investments(1) 60.79 55.12

Total $ 3,031.92 § 2,710.92

(1) Other Investments consist of the assets of The Gladstone Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Assets under management have increased since June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of the ability of the Existing Gladstone Funds to raise additional capital
and effectively deploy such capital into new investments. As reflected in the table below, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, this includes $661 million of new investments
that were partially offset by investment repayments and sales of $223 million and negative changes in fund value of $118 million. These valuation changes primarily occurred in
the second half of the fiscal year.

The following tables provide a roll-forward of assets under management (by Existing Gladstone Fund) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

(in millions) GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Other Total
Beginning Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 41534 $ 64195 $ 969.79 $ 628.72 $ 5512 §  2,710.92
Investment Purchases and Additions 154.66 94.54 165.76 246.31 — 661.27
Investment Repayments and Sales (84.63) (128.67) 9.31) — — (222.61)
Change in Fund Value (27.65) (37.15) (40.19) (18.34) 5.67 (117.66)
Ending Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 45772 § 570.67 $ 1,086.05 $ 856.69 $ 60.79 § 3,031.92

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

(in millions) GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Other Total
Beginning Balance, June 30, 2018 $ 41542 % 639.04 $ 912.01 $ 47521  $ 49.69 $ 249137
Investment Purchases and Additions 134.45 133.23 101.41 147.30 — 516.39
Investment Repayments and Sales (112.40) (185.73) (8.50) (14.20) — (320.83)
Change in Fund Value (22.13) 55.41 (35.13) 20.41 5.43 23.99
Ending Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 41534  $ 64195 $ 969.79 $ 628.72 $ 55.12  $  2,710.92

Competitive Strengths

Diversified, National Alternative Asset Management. Alternative asset management is the fastest growing segment of the asset management industry, and we
believe we are one of the leading mid-sized independent alternative asset managers in the United States. Our asset management business is diversified across a broad variety of
alternative asset classes and investment strategies and has national reach and scale. From the time our Adviser Subsidiary entered the asset management business in 2001
through June 30, 2020, the Existing Gladstone Funds have raised approximately $2.4 billion of capital. Our assets under management have grown from approximately
$133.2 million as of September 30, 2001 to approximately $3.0 billion as of June 30, 2020, representing a CAGR of approximately 18% over the 19-year period. We believe
that the strength and breadth of our franchise, supported by our people, investment approach and track record of success, provide a distinct advantage when raising capital,
evaluating opportunities, making investments, building value and realizing returns.



Stable Earnings Model. We believe we have a stable earnings model based on:

All of the equity capital that we currently manage is long-term in nature.As of June 30, 2020, 100% of our assets under management were in permanent
capital vehicles with no fund termination or maturity date. None of the Existing Gladstone Funds has a requirement to return equity capital to investors. This has enabled and
continues to enable us to invest assets with a long-term focus over different points in a market cycle, which we believe is an important component in generating attractive
returns. We believe our long-term capital also leaves us well-positioned during economic downturns, when the fundraising environment for alternative assets has historically
been more challenging than during periods of economic expansion.

We have a diverse capital base from four distinct funds. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, approximately 18.3%, 38.6%, 18.8%, and 12.2% of our total
fee revenue was generated from GLAD, GAIN, GOOD and LAND, respectively, with the balance arising from securities trade commissions and other income. We have a well-
balanced and diverse capital base, which we believe is the result of our demonstrated expertise across alternative capital vehicles.

A significant portion of our revenue is generated from management fees Management fees, which are generally based on the amount of invested capital in
funds we manage, are generally more predictable and less volatile than performance-based fees. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, approximately 35.9% of our total fee
revenue was comprised of base management fees. For the years ended June 30, 2018, 2019 and 2020, base management fees averaged 38.3% of our total fee revenue.

Strong Middle Market Presence. While we have some exposure to large companies through tenants of certain GOOD properties, our business of investing in
alternative assets includes substantial exposure to the United States middle market, which we define as United States businesses with $10 million to $1 billion in annual
revenue. According to the National Center for The Middle Market, while the middle market represents just 3% of all United States companies, it accounts for a third of United
States private sector gross domestic product and jobs, generates $6 trillion in annual revenue and employs 48 million people in the United States. Prior to the COVID-19
pandemic, the National Center for the Middle Market’s fourth quarter 2019 report reported that the year-over-year revenue growth rate of middle market companies was 7.5% as
compared to 4.3% for companies comprising the S&P 500. In their report for the second quarter of 2020, following the start of the pandemic, this revenue growth rate has
declined to -3.7%, but remains significantly better than the -13.9% decline for companies in the S&P 500. The projected revenue growth rate of middle market companies for
the 12-month period ending June 30, 2021 is projected to be at 2.0%, versus 4.9% in their prior December 2019 projection.

Demonstrated Investment Track Record. We have a demonstrated record of generating attractive risk-adjusted returns across our asset management business.
We believe that the investment returns we have generated for investors in the Existing Gladstone Funds over many years across a broad and expanding range of alternative asset
classes and through a variety of economic conditions and cycles of the equity and debt capital markets are a key reason why we have been able to consistently grow our assets
under management across our alternative asset management platform.

Diverse Base of Longstanding Investors. We have a long history of raising significant amounts of capital on a national basis across a broad range of asset
classes, and we believe that the strength and breadth of our relationships with individual and institutional investors will provide us with a competitive advantage in raising
capital. During the nearly two decades of asset management activities of our Adviser Subsidiary, we have built long-term relationships with many individual investors through
brokerage houses and smaller institutional investors in the United States, most of which invest in a number of the Existing Gladstone Funds. Furthermore, the investor base of
the Existing Gladstone Funds is highly diversified, with no single unaffiliated investor in the Existing Gladstone Funds owning more than 10% of the outstanding common
stock of those funds as of June 30, 2020. We believe that our strong network of investor relationships, together with our long-term track record of providing investors in our
funds with superior risk-adjusted investment returns, will enable us to continue to grow the Existing Gladstone Funds and successfully launch the Future Gladstone Funds.

Strong Industry and Corporate Relationships. We believe that the strength of our relationships with investment banking firms, other financial intermediaries
and leading corporations and corporate executives provides us with competitive advantages in identifying transactions, securing investment opportunities and generating
exceptional returns. We actively cultivate our relationships with major investment banking firms and other financial intermediaries. We believe our repeated and consistent
dealings with these firms over a long period of time have led to our being one of the first parties considered for potential investment ideas and have enhanced our ability to
obtain financing on more favorable terms. We believe that our strong network of relationships with these firms provide us with a significant advantage in attracting deal flow
and securing transactions, including a substantial number of exclusive investment opportunities and opportunities that are made available to a very limited number of other
private equity firms.



Our People. We believe that our executive officers and senior management, who average more than29 years of experience in the business of the fund that
they manage, are the key drivers in the growth of our business. Our executive officers and senior management are supported by other professionals with a variety of
backgrounds in investment banking, leveraged finance, private equity, real estate and other disciplines. We believe that the extensive experience and financial acumen of our
management and professionals provide us with a significant competitive advantage. We also believe that we benefit from substantial synergies across all of these businesses,
including the ability to leverage the extensive intellectual capital that resides throughout our firm. We believe that the extensive investment review process that is conducted in
all of our asset management businesses, involving active participation by David Gladstone, Terry Brubaker, David Dullum, Bob Cutlip, Bob Marcotte and Michael LiCalsi, is
not only a significant reason for our successful investment performance but also helps to maximize those synergies. See “Directors and Officers” for additional background
information for our executive officers.

Distinct Advisory Perspective. We are not engaged in activities that might conflict with our role as a trusted financial advisor. We believe that this makes us
particularly well-suited to represent boards and special committees in the increasing number of situations where they are looking to retain a financial advisor who is devoid of
such conflicts. In addition, we believe that our ability to view financial advisory client assignments from both the client’s and an owner’s perspective often provides unique
insights into how best to maximize value while also achieving our clients’ strategic objectives.

Demonstrated History of Legal and Regulatory Compliance. We have a proven track record of launching and managing publicly traded BDC and REIT
vehicles, each of which is subject to distinctive compliance and regulatory challenges. Rigorous legal and compliance analysis of our businesses and investments is important to
our culture and our history of regulatory and legal compliance across all of our vehicles is a core strength of our firm.

Bond Offering and Our Growth Strategy

On September 8, 2020, the Company’s offering statement for its Tier 2, Regulation A offering (the “Bond Offering”) of $50 million of 7.0% Senior Secured
Bonds which will mature on September 30, 2025 (the “Bonds”) was qualified by the SEC. The Bonds will bear interest at a rate equal to 7.0% per year payable to the record
holders of the Bonds monthly in arrears on the first day of each month. The Bonds will be secured by a senior blanket lien on the equity interest we hold in the Future Gladstone
Funds which are raised with the proceeds of the Bond Offering. The Bond Offering will terminate on the date that is the earlier of (1) September 30, 2023 (unless earlier
terminated or extended by our Board of Directors) and (2) the date on which all $50,000,000 of the Bonds offered pursuant to the Bond Offering are sold. We may redeem the
Bonds in whole or in part at any time or from time to time on or after September 30, 2023 (or at any time, if our Board of Directors determines, in its sole discretion, that the
proceeds of the Bond Offering are insufficient for the intended use of proceeds) at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus
any accrued, but unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. Bondholders will have no right to require us to redeem any of the Bonds prior to their maturity date
except in the case of a holder’s death, subject to certain notice and other requirements, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed,
plus any accrued, but unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. The Bonds will not be listed on a registered national securities exchange. Assuming the sale of all of
the Bonds, the net proceeds, after selling commissions and dealer manager fees, would be approximately $45.5 million. We intend to use the proceeds from the Bond Offering
to grow our assets under management by providing seed money to our Future Gladstone Funds, as outlined below, and for other possible new affiliated fund initiatives. As of
the date of this Annual Report, we have not sold any of the Bonds.

New REIT for Investments in Retail Properties We intend to invest up to $20 million of the proceeds from the Bond Offering as seed capital in Gladstone
Retail through an interest in Gladstone Retail’s operating partnership, which has not yet been formed. Gladstone Retail would seek to purchase and own retail properties, which
we define as locations that are open to the public and provide a product or service. These can include fast food restaurants, drug stores, auto dealerships, bank branches,
supermarkets and health care service locations. We would lease the locations to qualified tenants with experience in the product or service to be offered. Our management has
prior experience in evaluating, purchasing and leasing retail properties and we would use this expertise to focus on acquiring properties with strong potential current income and
value appreciation. Gladstone Retail would not compete with GOOD because GOOD does not invest in retail properties. As of the date of this Annual Report, we have not
identified specific properties that Gladstone Retail would seek to purchase.

New Fund to Invest in Farming Related Businesses We intend to invest up to $20 million of the proceeds from the Bond Offering as seed capital in Gladstone
Farming. Once launched, Gladstone Farming will seek to purchase agricultural operations across the United States that are focused on high-value crops such as organic
vegetables, fruits and nuts and those of which may be converted to organic. As of the date of this Annual Report, we have not identified specific properties that Gladstone
Farming would seek to purchase.



Gladstone Partners for Co-Investments with BDCs. We intend to invest up to $5 million of the proceedsfrom the Bond Offering as seed capital in Gladstone
Partners. Gladstone Partners would invest alone or co-invest in new portfolio companies with the Gladstone BDCs. By using capital to co-invest with the Gladstone BDCs in
this manner, we may take advantage of opportunities to make larger investments in portfolio companies, in the aggregate. Further, we believe that investing this seed capital in
Gladstone Partners would enable Gladstone Partners to seek and obtain additional direct equity investments of cash from new unaffiliated investors in exchange for limited
partnership interests therein. These additional investments would provide funding for Gladstone Partners to make future additional co-investments with GAIN and GLAD.
Gladstone Partners does not intend to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. As of the date of this Annual Report, we have not identified specific co-investment
opportunities in portfolio companies or loans that Gladstone Partners would seek to invest in

We believe that the foregoing investments in our Future Gladstone Funds would add diversification to our portfolio of funds and, in certain circumstances,
allow the funds that we manage to invest in larger investment opportunities. In addition to exploring entering into new businesses, we intend to continue to explore ways to
expand our lines of business, as we have successfully done throughout our firm’s history, including by (1) adding new funds to our various asset management businesses
(potentially including new structured debt and asset backed funds, new proprietary real estate funds and industry- or geography-specialized types of private equity funds) and
otherwise pursuing ways to expand our assets under management in all of our businesses, and (2) continuing to attract to our firm individuals who can help us expand our asset
management and financial services businesses into new investment or advisory areas and new geographic regions. To date, none of the Future Gladstone Funds listed above has
conducted any business other than in connection with their initial formation. There is no assurance that we will be able to utilize the offering proceeds in the manner or amounts
contemplated herein, or at all. We have not determined a likely order for the intended investments described above and may determine not to pursue one or more of the above
funds. In the future, we may fund other real estate or portfolio company investments. Such future strategies may include investing in entities focused on purchasing and
managing large farm operations, which we generally define as an operation exceeding $100 million in value, or investing in special purpose acquisition companies. We
currently do not have any plans to enter into these long-term possibilities.

Financial Services

Financial services generally include receiving transaction-based compensation or other compensation for providing advice on a variety of strategic and
financial matters, such as mergers, acquisitions and divestitures, restructurings and reorganizations and capital raising and capital structure. Such services are generally provided
by investment banking firms, integrated commercial banks and specialized “boutique” financial firms. Advisors typically earn either a fixed fee or a fee based on a percentage
of a transaction’s value, generally paid only when the transaction is completed.

In addition to the asset management services that we provide through our Adviser Subsidiary, we provide other financial services through our Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary. Our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary receives various financial services fees, which typically consist of transaction-based fee and commission arrangements related to
investment banking, due diligence, dealer manager, mortgage placement, and other financial services. Transaction fees are recognized when they are collected.

Over the five-year period ended June 30, 2020, we have generated $51.0 million in various fees through our financial services business, including
$38.3 million of investment banking, annual review and property management fees and $12.7 million of securities trade commissions.

Administrative Services

The Administrator Subsidiary provides administrative services to the Existing Gladstone Funds as well as our Adviser Subsidiary and Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary and is expected to provide such services for the Future Gladstone Funds. Its revenues equal its costs, as the Administrator Subsidiary’s purpose is to provide the
requisite level of administrative services to the Existing Gladstone Funds (and to the Future Gladstone Funds) and our other subsidiaries at the lowest feasible cost.
Additionally, the Administrator Subsidiary is responsible for producing the financial statements, asset valuations, handling compliance, legal, and other duties for us, the
Existing Gladstone Funds, and our other subsidiaries.

The Administration Agreements for the Existing Gladstone Funds provide for payments equal to their allocable portion of the Administrator Subsidiary’s
expenses incurred while performing services to them, which are primarily rent and salaries and benefits expenses of the Administrator Subsidiary’s employees, including each of
the Existing Gladstone Funds’ chief financial officer and treasurer, chief compliance officer, chief valuation officer and general counsel and secretary (who also serves as the
Administrator Subsidiary’s president).



Competition

The asset management and financial services industries are intensely competitive, and we expect them to remain so. We compete both nationally and on a
regional, industry and niche basis. We compete on the basis of a number of factors, including investment performance, transaction execution skills, access to and cost of capital,
business reputation, range and quality of products and services, innovation and price.

Asset Management. We face competition both in the pursuit of outside investors for the Existing Gladstone Funds and our Future Gladstone Funds and in
acquiring investments in attractive portfolio companies and making other investments. Depending on the investment, we expect to face competition primarily from private
equity funds, specialized investment funds, hedge fund sponsors, commercial banks and other financial institutions, corporate buyers and other parties, including, primarily,
other BDCs and REITs. Many of these competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than are generally
available to us. Several of these competitors have recently raised funds, or are expected to raise funds, with significant amounts of capital and many of them have similar
investment objectives to our funds, which may create additional competition for investment opportunities. Some of these competitors may also have a lower cost of capital and
access to funding sources that are not available to us or the funds that we manage, which may create competitive disadvantages for us with respect to investment opportunities.
In addition, some of these competitors may have higher risk tolerances, different risk assessments or lower return thresholds, which could allow them to consider a wider variety
of investments and to bid more aggressively than us for investments that we want to make on behalf of our funds or through proprietary accounts. Corporate buyers may be able
to achieve synergistic cost savings with regard to an investment that may provide them with a competitive advantage in bidding for an investment. Moreover, the allocation of
increasing amounts of capital to alternative investment strategies by institutional and individual investors may lead to a reduction in the size and duration of pricing
inefficiencies that many of our funds seek to exploit.

Financial Services. Our competitors are other financial advisory and investment banking firms. Our primary competitors in our financial advisory business
are large financial institutions, many of which have far greater financial and other resources and much broader client relationships than us and (unlike us) have the ability to
offer a wide range of products, from loans, deposit-taking and insurance to brokerage and a wide range of investment banking services, which may enhance their competitive
position. Our competitors also have the ability to support investment banking, including financial advisory services, with commercial banking, insurance and other financial
services revenue in an effort to gain market share, which puts us at a competitive disadvantage and could result in pricing pressures that could materially adversely affect our
revenue and profitability.

Employees

As of June 30, 2020, we employed through our Adviser Subsidiary and Administrator Subsidiary 69 people, including 28 people who serve as our executive
officers or as executive officers, managing directors (of investments) or directors (of investments) of the Existing Gladstone Funds, and 41 other investment and administrative
professionals, all of which are full-time employees. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good and have not experienced interruptions of operations due to
labor disagreements.

Regulatory and Compliance Matters

The asset management and financial services industries are subject to extensive regulation in the United States and elsewhere. The SEC and other regulators
have in recent years significantly increased their regulatory activities with respect to alternative asset management firms. Certain of our businesses are subject to compliance
with Federal and state laws and regulations, the oversight of their respective agencies and/or various self-regulatory organizations or exchanges, and any failure to comply with
these regulations could expose us to liability and/or reputational damage. Our businesses have operated for a number of years within a legal framework that requires our being
able to monitor and comply with a broad range of legal and regulatory developments that affect our activities. However, additional legislation, changes in rules promulgated by
regulators or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules, either in the United States or elsewhere, may directly affect operation and profitability.

Rigorous legal and compliance analysis of our businesses and investments is important to our culture. We strive to maintain a culture of compliance through
the use of policies and procedures such as oversight compliance, codes of conduct, compliance systems, communication of compliance guidance and employee education and
training. We have a compliance group that monitors our compliance with all of the regulatory requirements to which we are subject and manages our compliance policies and
procedures. Our Executive Vice President of Administration, General Counsel and Secretary, Michael LiCalsi, also serves as President of our Administrator Subsidiary, and
thus supervises our compliance group, which is responsible for addressing all regulatory and compliance matters that affect our and the Existing Gladstone Funds’ activities.
Our compliance policies and procedures address a variety of regulatory and compliance risks such as the handling of material non-public information, position reporting,
personal securities trading, valuation of investments on a fund-specific basis, document retention, potential conflicts of interest and the allocation of investment opportunities.
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FINRA Regulation

Our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary, through which we primarily conduct our financial services business, is registered as a broker-dealer with the SEC and is a
member of FINRA and the SIPC and is registered as a broker-dealer in all fifty states. Our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary is subject to regulation and oversight by the SEC and
FINRA. Broker-dealers are subject to regulations that cover all aspects of the securities business, including sales methods, trade practices among broker-dealers, use and
safekeeping of customers’ funds and securities, capital structure, record-keeping, the financing of customers’ purchases and the conduct and qualifications of directors, officers
and employees. In recent years, the SEC and various self-regulatory organizations have aggressively increased their regulatory activities in respect of asset management firms.

SEC Regulation

Our Adviser Subsidiary is registered with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act, and our BDCs, GLAD and GAIN, are regulated under
certain provisions of the 1940 Act. As compared to other, more disclosure-oriented United States Federal securities laws, the Advisers Act and the 1940 Act, together with the
SEC’s regulations and interpretations thereunder, are highly restrictive regulatory statutes. The SEC is authorized to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of
the Advisers Act and the 1940 Act, ranging from fines and censures to termination of an adviser’s registration.

Under the Advisers Act, an investment adviser has fiduciary duties to its clients. The SEC has interpreted these duties to impose standards, requirements and
limitations on, among other things, trading for proprietary, personal and client accounts; allocations of investment opportunities among clients; use of “soft dollars,” a practice
that involves using client brokerage commissions to purchase research or other services that help managers make investment decisions; execution of transactions; and
recommendations to clients. On behalf of our investment advisory clients, we make decisions to buy and sell securities for each portfolio, select broker dealers to execute trades
and negotiate brokerage commission rates.

The Advisers Act also imposes specific restrictions on an investment adviser’s ability to engage in principal and agency cross transactions. As a registered
adviser, our Adviser Subsidiary is subject to many additional requirements that cover, among other things, disclosure of information about its business to clients; maintenance
of written policies and procedures; maintenance of extensive books and records; restrictions on the types of fees it may charge; custody of client assets; client privacy;
advertising; and solicitation of clients. The SEC has legal authority to inspect any investment adviser and typically inspects a registered adviser periodically to determine
whether the adviser is conducting its activities in compliance with (i) applicable laws, (ii) disclosures made to clients and (iii) adequate systems, policies and procedures to
ensure compliance.

A majority of our revenues are derived from our Adviser Subsidiary’s provision of asset management services, including those provided to our BDCs. The
1940 Act imposes significant requirements and limitations on BDC funds, including with respect to its capital structure, investments and transactions. While our Adviser
Subsidiary exercises broad discretion over the day-to-day management of these funds, every fund is also subject to oversight and management by a board of directors, a majority
of whom are not “interested persons” as defined under the 1940 Act. The responsibilities of each board include, among other things, approving the advisory contract with the
BDC; approving service providers; determining the valuation and the method for valuing assets; and monitoring transactions involving affiliates. Advisory contracts with the
Gladstone BDCs may be terminated by either party or by the BDC’s stockholders on not more than 60 days’ notice and are subject to annual renewal by the BDC’s board of
directors. In addition, under the 1940 Act, advisory agreements with 1940 Act funds (such as the Gladstone BDCs) terminate automatically upon assignment. The term
“assignment” is broadly defined and includes direct assignments as well as assignments that may be deemed to occur upon the transfer, directly or indirectly, of a controlling
interest in us.

Generally, BDCs are prohibited under the 1940 Act from knowingly participating in certain transactions with their affiliates without prior approval of their
board of directors who are not interested persons and, in some cases, prior approval by the SEC. The SEC has interpreted the prohibition on transactions with affiliates to
prohibit “joint transactions” among entities that share a common investment adviser. On July 26, 2012, the SEC granted an exemptive order that permits GAIN, GLAD and any
future BDC or closed-end management investment company that is advised by the Adviser Subsidiary (or sub-advised by the Adviser Subsidiary if it also controls the fund), or
any combination of the foregoing, to co-invest subject to the conditions contained therein.

In certain situations where co-investment with one or more funds managed by the Adviser Subsidiary or its affiliates is not covered by the order, such as when
there is an opportunity to invest in different securities of the same issuer, the personnel of the Adviser Subsidiary or its affiliates will need to decide which fund will proceed
with the investment. Such personnel will make these determinations based on policies and procedures, which are designed to reasonably ensure that investment opportunities are
allocated fairly and equitably, but do not entirely eliminate potential for a conflict of interest.
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Properties

We do not own any real estate or other physical properties material to our operations. Our principal executive offices, which are leased by the Adviser
Subsidiary, are located at 1521 Westbranch Drive, Suite 100, McLean, Virginia 22102. We also have offices in New York, New York; Chicago, Illinois; Seattle, Washington;
Dallas, Texas; and Salinas, California. We consider these facilities to be suitable and adequate for the management and operation of our business as presently conducted.

Legal Proceedings

We may from time to time be involved in litigation and claims incidental to the conduct of our business. Our businesses are also subject to extensive
regulation, which may result in regulatory proceedings against us. We are not currently subject to any pending judicial, administrative or arbitration proceedings that we expect
to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial condition. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business’ that are incorporated by reference to this
Annual Report.

Risk Factors

Our business is subject to certain risks and events that, if they occur, could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. For a discussion
of these risks, please refer to the section captioned “Risk Factors” in Part Il of our Form 1-A/A - Offering Statementas filed with the SEC on September 3, 2020, which section
is incorporated by reference herein. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with risks the described herein and all of the other information included in this
Annual Report and the other reports and documents filed by us with the SEC. These risks are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known
to us, or not presently deemed material by us, may also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. If that happens, you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

Our business and that of the Existing Gladstone Funds has been, and in the future could be further, adversely affected by the recent coronavirus
outbreak.

As of the date of this Annual Report, there is an outbreak of a novel and highly contagious form of coronavirus (COVID-19), which the World Health
Organization has declared to constitute a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in numerous deaths, adversely impacted
global commercial activity and contributed to significant volatility in certain equity and debt markets. The global impact of the outbreak is rapidly evolving, and many
countries, including the United States, have reacted by instituting quarantines, prohibitions on travel and the closure of offices, businesses, schools, retail stores and other public
venues. Businesses are also implementing similar precautionary measures. Such measures, as well as the general uncertainty surrounding the dangers and impact of COVID-19,
are creating significant disruption in supply chains and economic activity and are having a particularly adverse impact on transportation, hospitality, tourism, entertainment and
other industries. As COVID-19 continues to spread, the potential impacts, including a global, regional or other economic recession, are increasingly uncertain and difficult to
assess.

Any public health emergency, including any outbreak of COVID-19, SARS, HIN1/09 flu, avian flu, other coronavirus, Ebola or other existing or new
epidemic diseases, or the threat thereof, could have a significant adverse impact on our businesses and the Existing Gladstone Funds and their portfolio companies and could
adversely affect our results of operations.

The extent of the impact of any public health emergency, including the COVID-19 pandemic, on our and our businesses’ and funds’ operational and financial
performance will depend on many factors, including the duration and scope of such public health emergency, the extent of any related travel advisories and restrictions
implemented, the impact of such public health emergencies on overall supply and demand, goods and services, investor liquidity, consumer confidence and levels of economic
activity and the extent of its disruption to important global, regional and local supply chains and economic markets, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.
For example, each of GLAD and GAIN records its assets at fair value. Between June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020, both of these entities experienced a significant reduction in
their gross assets, which primarily occurred in the quarter ended March 31, 2020. While there was some recovery by June 30, 2020, both had a negative change in fund value
for the year. We expect that these reductions in gross assets will negatively impact the management fees that we receive from each of GLAD and GAIN for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021 through the conclusion of the COVID-19 pandemic and potentially beyond. In addition, the incentive fees that we are entitled to receive from each of the
Existing Gladstone Funds will be adversely affected to the extent that investment income (or its equivalent) is reduced whether as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic or
otherwise. The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted, and future public health emergencies may disrupt, the operations of the companies in which the Gladstone BDCs invest and
the tenants of the Gladstone REITs. Certain of these companies and/or tenants have experienced a significant reduction of their

11


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1805586/000119312520242380/d932326d253g1.htm#part2tx856120_3

business activities, including as a result of shutdowns requested or mandated by governmental authorities, in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic (and may experience
similar outcomes in connection with future public health emergencies). We cannot estimate the impact that a public health threat could have on the companies in which the
Gladstone BDCs invest or the tenants of the Gladstone REITS, but it could disrupt their businesses and their ability to make interest, lease or dividend payments and decrease the
overall value of the Existing Gladstone Funds’ investments and leasehold interests, which could adversely impact their business, financial condition or results of operations,
which would adversely affect our revenues and results of operations.

Further, the operations of our businesses, the Existing Gladstone Funds and their portfolio companies may be significantly impacted, or even temporarily or
permanently halted, as a result of government quarantine measures, voluntary and precautionary restrictions on travel or meetings and other factors related to a public health
emergency, including its potential adverse impact on the health of the Adviser Subsidiary’s and the Administrator Subsidiary’s personnel. As a result, there is a risk that this
crisis could adversely impact the ability of our businesses and funds to source, manage and divest investments and to achieve their investment objectives, all of which could
result in lower base management and/or incentive fees earned by our Adviser Subsidiary, which could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance.
Instead they are based only on our current beliefs, expectations and assumptions regarding the future of our business, future plans and strategies, projections, anticipated
events and trends, the economy and other future conditions. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“outlook,” “target,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “project,” by future conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,” “could” or “may,” or by variations of such words or
by similar expressions. These statements are not historical facts, but instead represent our current expectations, plans or forecasts and are based on the beliefs and assumptions
of management and the information available to management at the time that these disclosures were prepared.

”» e

2

Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks (both known and unknown) and uncertainties, and other factors which change over
time. Such factors include:

. reductions in assets under management by our Adviser Subsidiary based on investment performance, adverse changes in the economy and the capital
markets and other factors, including the COVID-19 pandemic;

. the loss of an Advisory Agreement with an Existing Gladstone Fund;

. our ability to maintain historical returns of the Existing Gladstone Funds and sustain our historicalgrowth;

. the impact of COVID-19 generally and on the economy, the capital markets our business and the portfolio companies of the Gladstone Funds,
including the measures taken by governmental authorities to address it;

. our ability to retain key investment professionals or members of our senior management team;

. our reliance on the technology systems supporting our operations;

. availability of capital to the Existing Gladstone Funds;

. our ability to successfully launch and grow the Future Gladstone Funds and develop new strategies and funds in the future;

. the concentration of our investments in lower middle market businesses and real estate in theUnited States;

. the ability of our investment teams to identify appropriate investmentopportunities;

. our exposure to potential litigation (including administrative or tax proceedings) or regulatoryactions;

. our ability to implement effective information and cyber security policies, procedures andcapabilities;

. our determination that we are not required to register as an “investment company” under the 1940 Act;

. the fluctuation of our expenses and results of operations;

. our ability to respond to recent trends in the asset management industry;

. changes in governmental regulation (including regulation specific to the asset management industry), tax rates and similar matters and our ability to

respond to such changes;

. the degree and nature of competition in the asset management industry;
. the level of control over us retained by David Gladstone;
. our ability to deploy the proceeds of the Bond Offering with the Future Gladstone Funds or other changes to our business as a result of the proposed use

of proceeds from the Bond Offering;and

. other risks and factors listed under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report.

These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included in this Annual
Report. New risks and uncertainties arise over time, and it is not possible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. Therefore, you should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. We do not assume any duty and do not undertake to update
our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law. Because forward-looking statements are
subject to assumptions, risks, uncertainties, and other factors, actual results or future events could differ, possibly materially, from those that we anticipated in our forward-
looking statements and future results could differ materially from our historical performance.
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The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated financial statements and the related notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The historical consolidated financial data discussed below reflect our historical results of operations and financial position.

Overview

We are a leading alternative asset manager and provider of other administrative and financial services. We currently provide these services to the four Existing
Gladstone Funds, which are publicly traded, Nasdaq-listed companies invested in alternative asset classes:

. GLAD, a BDC, primarily invests in debt securities of established private lower middle market companies in the United States. GLAD was established
in 2001 and is an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company that has elected to be treated as a BDC under the
1940 Act. In addition, it has elected to be treated as a RIC for Federal tax purposes under the Code;

. GAIN, a BDC, primarily invests in debt and equity securities of lower middle market private businesses operating in the United States (including in
connection with management buyouts, recapitalizations or, to a lesser extent, refinancings of existing debt facilities). GAIN was established in 2005
and, like GLAD, is an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company that has elected to be treated as a BDC
under the 1940 Act. In addition, it has elected to be treated as a RIC for Federal tax purposes under the Code.;

. GOOD, a REIT, focuses on acquiring, owning and managing primarily office and industrial properties in the United States. GOOD was established in
2003 and is an externally-managed REIT; and

. LAND, a REIT, focuses on acquiring, owning and leasing farmland and farm-related properties in the United States. LAND was established in 2013
and is an externally-managed REIT.

We generate revenue from fees earned pursuant to advisory, administrative, broker-dealer and other agreements our subsidiaries have with the Existing
Gladstone Funds and to other affiliated entities. These fees are generated through:

. the Adviser Subsidiary, an investment adviser registered with the SEC, which currently advises the Existing Gladstone Funds;

. the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary, a broker dealer registered with FINRA and insured by the SIPC, which currently provides certain investment banking
mortgage placement and dealer manager services to the Existing Gladstone Funds; and

. the Administrator Subsidiary, which currently provides administrative services to the Existing Gladstone Funds, including accounting, valuation, legal,
compliance, and other services.

Our asset management business is operated through our Adviser Subsidiary, a registered investment adviser with the SEC, which has advisory agreements in
place to manage all of the Existing Gladstone Funds. Our investment advisory business generated income before taxes of $8.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
Our assets under management have grown from approximately $133.2 million as of September 30, 2001 to approximately $3.0 billion as of June 30, 2020, representing a
CAGR of approximately 18%. Since the inception of GLAD in 2001 through June 30, 2020, the Existing Gladstone Funds have invested in 594 businesses or properties for an
aggregate amount of approximately $5.9 billion and paid $1.2 billion in common stock dividends or distributions to their investors.

Our Adviser Subsidiary has managed the Existing Gladstone Funds with a perspective of achieving successful growth over the long-term. In establishing and
growing our various funds, and in determining the types of investments to be made by our funds, our management has consistently sought to focus on the best outcomes for our
businesses and the Existing Gladstone Funds that we manage over a period of years, rather than on the short-term effect on our revenue, net income or cash flow. We believe
that this approach will continue to significantly affect our revenue, net income and cash flow as a result of the timing of new investments and realizations of investments by the
Existing Gladstone Funds, the Future Gladstone Funds and any other business or funds we may manage in the future.

As of the date of this Annual Report, we manage our operations on an aggregated, single segment basis for purposes of assessing performance and making
operating decisions, and, accordingly, have only one reportable and operating segment. We provide asset management services through the Adviser Subsidiary and all of our

revenues are generated within the United States.
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Financial Services

We provide financial services through our Adviser Subsidiary and through our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary earns fees generated
from providing dealer manager, investment banking, mortgage placement, and other services to us, the Existing Gladstone Funds and certain portfolio companies of GLAD and
GAIN. We incur third-party securities trade costs associated with the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary that largely offset the associated securities trade commission revenue we earn.

Administrative Services

Our Administrator Subsidiary is a party to administration agreements with each of the Existing Gladstone Funds, as well as being a party to substantially
similar agreements with us and our subsidiaries. Our Administrator Subsidiary provides accounting, legal, compliance, treasury, valuation, regulatory and other services
pursuant to such agreements.

Our Revenues and Expenses

Our revenue is primarily derived from fees (pursuant to advisory agreements) our Adviser Subsidiary receives for managing the Existing Gladstone Funds.
Such fees include investment advisory fees (also called base management fees) which are based upon assets or stockholders’ equity under management; loan servicing fees for
serving as the servicer pursuant to line of credit agreements; performance-based incentive fees for meeting certain income or realized capital gains thresholds; and investment
banking fees for providing investment banking, due diligence and management or advisory services. Our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary also receives fees for other financial services
it provides to certain of the Existing Gladstone Funds and portfolio companies thereof, including distribution, investment banking, due diligence, dealer manager, mortgage
placement and other financial services.

Historically, our most significant expense is the payment of salaries, bonuses and benefits for our employees, each of which is directly employed by either the
Adviser Subsidiary or the Administrator Subsidiary.

Business Environment

As an asset management firm, our businesses are materially affected by conditions in the financial markets and economic conditions generally in the United
States and, to a lesser extent, globally. Our diverse mix of businesses has allowed us to generate attractive returns across different business climates. Generally, business
conditions characterized by low inflation, low or declining interest rates and strong equity markets provide a positive climate for us to generate attractive returns on existing
investments. Since the Existing Gladstone Funds are closed-end funds with no requirement to return invested equity capital, we have generally been able to produce stable
revenues. However, during periods of market volatility the fair value of the assets owned by the Existing Gladstone Funds will increase or decrease accordingly, which impacts
the base management fees. In addition, during market downturns, certain portfolio companies and tenants of the Existing Gladstone Funds may no longer be able to make the
payments due under the applicable agreement with an Existing Gladstone Fund, which may impact the income of the applicable Existing Gladstone Fund and incentive fees.

Market Conditions

Our ability to grow revenues in our asset management business largely depends upon the growth in assets under management and income in the Existing
Gladstone Funds, Future Gladstone Funds, and in other businesses or funds we may manage in the future. Such growth will depend upon our ability to attract new capital and
investors to our funds and our ability to successfully invest our funds’ capital. Our ability to grow our revenues in our financial services business (through our Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary) depends largely on the ability of GLAD and GAIN (and in the future, Gladstone Farming or Gladstone Partners) to invest in new portfolio companies and the
Broker-Dealer Subsidiary’s ability to source mortgages for GOOD and LAND (and in the future, Gladstone Retail), and the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary’s ability to provide
effective dealer manager services to certain of the Existing Gladstone Funds’ and Future Gladstone Funds’ registered, non-listed issuances of stock or bonds, if any.

The global economy has experienced economic uncertainty in recent years. Economic uncertainty impacts our business in many ways, including through
changing spreads, structures and purchase multiples, as well as the overall supply of investment capital. See “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Business "that are
incorporated by reference to this Annual Report. As interest rates remain relatively low and public equities are not able to meet expected returns, we see increasing investor
demand for alternative investments to achieve higher yields. As a result, some investors have increased their allocation to private markets relative to other asset classes. In
addition, the opportunities in private markets have expanded as firms have created new vehicles and products in which to access private markets across different geographies
and opportunity sets.

While COVID-19 hasn’t had a marked effect on the total revenue we have received related to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, it has negatively impacted
certain elements of revenue in the six months ended June 30, 2020, particularly income-based
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incentive fees from the Gladstone BDCs. As a result of decreases in their asset valuations, their net investment income was lowered, which iscompared to a hurdle rate in
determining any income-based incentive fees payable to the Adviser Subsidiary. With GAIN, we experienced a decrease of approximately $3.1 million in the income-based
incentive fees between the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 that was a direct effect of their valuation changes which were primarily
attributable to the impact of COVID-19. As discussed under Certain Financial Measures and Indicators — Revenues, reductions in incentive fees that we earnresults in a
corresponding decrease in the amount of incentive compensation that would be dueunder our carried interest incentive compensation plans.

Our revenues are directly impacted by the performance of the Existing Gladstone Funds, including any impacts they experience from COVID-19. Both
GLAD’s and GAIN’s investment portfolio companies are diverse from an industry and geographic perspective, which should help mitigate any disproportionate effects of
COVID-19 on specific industries and regions. In addition, while both GLAD and GAIN continue to monitor and work with their respective portfolio companies to navigate the
significant challenges created by the COVID-19 pandemic, we believe that the portfolio companies of both GLAD and GAIN have taken actions to effectively and efficiently
respond to such challenges. We believe both GLAD and GAIN have sufficient levels of liquidity to support their existing portfolio companies, as necessary, and selectively
deploy capital in new investment opportunities.

We believe GOOD has a diverse tenant base from both a geography and industry perspective, without significant exposure to tenants in industries that have
been significantly impacted by COVID-19, and GOOD has collected all cash rent obligations for the first half 2020 that were not subject to rent deferral agreements. GOOD
entered into rent deferral agreements with three tenants in April 2020, which in the aggregate represent approximately 2% of GOOD'’s total portfolio rents.

We do not believe that COVID has materially affected LAND’s operations or those of its tenants at this point in time. Most of LAND’s farmers initially
experienced increased sales volumes and higher-than-average prices because the pandemic led the public to stockpile food and other necessities. However, such volumes and
prices have recently returned to more normalized levels. LAND granted two rent deferrals for semi-annual rental payments due in July, which in the aggregate represent
approximately 0.7% of LAND’s total portfolio rents, due to delays in payments owed to the tenants from their respective processors due to COVID-related government
mandated lockdowns. We currently expect values of LAND’s farmland portfolio to remain stable, and with the exception of the rent deferrals granted to the two aforementioned
tenants in July 2020, we expect rental payments due to LAND to continue to be paid on time for at least the foreseeable future.

Trends Affecting our Business
In addition to general market conditions, we believe the following trends will impact our future performance:

. Increasing Importance of Alternative Assets. Over the past several years, investor groups of all types have meaningfully increased their capital
allocations to alternative investment strategies. We expect this current trend will continue as the combination of volatile returns in public equities and
low-yields on traditional fixed income investments shifts investor focus to the lower correlated and absolute levels of returns offered by alternative
assets. In particular, real assets, private equity and private debt strategies are expected to achieve significant growth as investors diversify to reduce
volatility and achieve higher yields.

. Increasing Demand for Alternative Assets from Retail Investors. Defined contribution pension plans and retail investors are demanding more exposure
to alternative investment products to seek differentiated returns as well as to satisfy a desire for current yield due to changing demographics. We have
benefited from this growing demand, given our diverse alternative offerings through publicly traded vehicles. With an established market presence, we
believe we are well positioned to take advantage of the growing opportunity in the retail channel.

. Shifting Asset Allocation Policies of Institutional Investors. We believe that the growing pension liability gap is driving investors to seek higher return
strategies and that institutional investors, such as insurance companies, are increasingly rotating away from core fixed income products towards more
liquid alternative credit and absolute return-oriented products to achieve their return hurdles. According to Ernst & Young, institutional investors
allocated an estimated 25% of the global portfolio towards alternative strategies in 2019, up from approximately 12% in 2009. The increase in
allocation has also been accompanied by a change in allocation strategy to a more balanced approach between private equity and non-private equity
alternative investments. Our combination of credit expertise, total return and multi-strategy product offerings are particularly well suited to benefit
from these asset allocation trends.

. The strength and liquidity of the United States and relevant global equity and debt markets These markets affect the value of the underlying
investments of the Existing Gladstone Funds and Future Gladstone Funds, which in turn affect the assets under management and income of those
funds and the base management fees and the incentive fees we earn. Furthermore, changes in supply and demand for real estate assets could affect our
ability to increase the value of GOOD and LAND. In addition, certain of our funds may use leverage in order to increase investment
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returns, which ultimately affects our current income and ability to attract additional capital. Prior to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemicUnited
States and relevant global debt markets havebeen particularly robust in recent years, contributing to our ability to finance acquisitions by the Existing
Gladstone Funds at attractive rates, leverage ratios and terms. A reduction in leverage ratios or a tightening of covenants and other credit terms could
also negatively impact the assets under management or income of our Existing Gladstone Funds and our Future Gladstone Funds and the fees the
Adviser Subsidiary earns under the Advisory Agreements.

Interest Rate Risk. Fluctuations in interest rates may affect the performance of the Existing Gladstone Funds and Future Gladstone Funds. Historical
trends in these markets are not necessarily indicative of future performance in these funds. Current interest rates are near long-term historical lows;
however, credit spreads have increased with the recent decline in interest rates, mitigating a portion of the decline in investment yields. Increases in
rates and decreases in credit spreads would have a mixed impact on our performance as asset yields would tend to rise but so would the cost of
servicing floating-rate debt used to leverage the Existing and Future Gladstone Funds, which could impact the performance-based incentive fees that
the Adviser Subsidiary earns. However, we believe that we and the Existing Gladstone Funds are well-positioned for a rising interest rate environment,
as the floating rate investments in these funds are substantially greater than their floating rate debts.

Competition among alternative asset managers.Our ability to grow our revenue is dependent on our continued ability to source attractive investments
for the funds we manage and to deploy the capital that we have raised. Our transaction volume is largely based on relationships that we cultivate in the
debt, equity, real estate and natural resource markets. Deviations from these relationships can occur in any given year for a number of reasons. We
compete against a number of other public and private asset managers that are larger than us or have more diversified sources of revenue or stronger
relationships in the sectors in which we operate. A significant decrease in the quality or quantity of investment opportunities or an increase in
competition from new alternative asset management entrants could adversely affect our ability to source investments with returns that meet the
investment objectives of the funds we manage.

Unpredictable global macroeconomic conditions. Global economic conditions, including political environments, the impact of pandemics such as
COVID-19, financial market performance, interest rates, credit spreads or other conditions beyond our control, all of which affect the performance of
our funds’ underlying investments, are unpredictable and could negatively affect our performance and that of the funds that we manage and their and
our ability to raise funds in the future.

Increasing regulatory requirements. The complex regulatory and tax environment for asset managers could restrict our operations and subject us to
increased compliance costs and administrative burdens, as well as restrictions on our business activities.

We believe recent market conditions have created both favorable and unfavorable environments for our asset management and financial advisory businesses
during the periods presented. Changes in these market conditions could have positive or negative effects on our asset management and financial advisory businesses in future
periods, and those effects could be material. For a more detailed description of how economic and global financial market conditions can materially affect our financial
performance and condition, see “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business’ that are incorporated by reference to this Annual Report. Our historical results of operations are
not indicative of the expected future operating results.

Certain Financial Measures and Indicators

We consolidate the financial results of entities we control through a majority voting interest (including the Adviser Subsidiary, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary,
and the Administrator Subsidiary) as well as entities that are determined to be variable interest entities where we are deemed to be the primary beneficiary of the entity. While
the Adviser Subsidiary is the investment adviser to the Existing Gladstone Funds, it does not hold a majority of the voting interests in any of the Existing Gladstone Funds, and
thus, for accounting purposes and reporting purposes, we do not consolidate the Existing Gladstone Funds in our financial statements. The base management fees and incentive
fee compensation received from the advisory agreements between our Adviser Subsidiary and the Existing Gladstone Funds are the only aspects of the Existing Gladstone
Funds that are recorded in our financial statements.
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Revenues

Investment Advisory Fees (Base Management Fees). Investment advisory fees are earned from services provided by the Adviser Subsidiary to the Existing
Gladstone Funds pursuant to the terms of the Advisory Agreements. Investment advisory fee revenue is recognized as the advisory services are provided, and any unpaid
amounts are classified as accounts receivable, related party. Additionally, pursuant to the requirements of the 1940 Act, our Adviser Subsidiary makes available significant
managerial assistance to portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN. The Adviser Subsidiary may also provide other services to such portfolio companies under certain
agreements and may receive fees for services other than managerial assistance. Our Adviser Subsidiary non-contractually, unconditionally, and irrevocably credits 100% of
these fees against the investment advisory fee that GLAD and GAIN would otherwise be required to pay to our Adviser Subsidiary; however, pursuant to the terms of the
Advisory Agreements with each of GLAD and GAIN, a small percentage of certain of such fees is retained by our Adviser Subsidiary in the form of reimbursement, at cost, for
tasks completed by personnel of the Adviser Subsidiary, primarily for the valuation of portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN.

Loan Servicing Fees. Certain of GLAD’s and GAIN’s loan investments are held in their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries. Loan servicing fees represent
amounts earned by the Adviser Subsidiary for acting as the servicer pursuant to the terms of the line of credit agreements between the relevant subsidiary and its creditor banks.
Since GLAD and GAIN own these loans indirectly (through their 100% ownership of the relevant subsidiary), all loan-servicing fees earned by the Adviser Subsidiary are
credited directly against the investment advisory fees otherwise due and payable to the Adviser Subsidiary by GLAD and GAIN. Loan servicing fee revenue is recognized when
it is earned.

Performance-Based Incentive Fees. Incentive fees are earned by the Adviser Subsidiary pursuant to a given Advisory Agreement when an Existing Gladstone
Fund meets certain income or realized capital gains thresholds. Incentive fees are recognized as income when all contingencies, including realization of specified minimum
hurdle rates, have been exceeded. Any calculated amount above the required minimum hurdle rates, as specified in the respective Advisory Agreement, is allocated by the
Existing Gladstone Fund to the Adviser Subsidiary. The incentive fees are not subject to reversal or clawback under the terms of the Advisory Agreements. To date the Adviser
Subsidiary has not received any such capital gains-based incentive fees other than from GAIN.

In accordance with GAAP, the Existing Gladstone Funds accrue a capital gains-based incentive fee as if their investments had been liquidated at their fair
values as of the end of the reporting period, even though they are not payable to the Adviser Subsidiary until such capital gains are realized and become contractually due under
the terms of the applicable Advisory Agreement. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, we recognized and were paid $8.1 million of capital gains-based incentive fees. To the
extent we receive capital gains-based incentive fees, they give rise to an obligation under our capital gains-based carried interest plans that exist between the Adviser Subsidiary
and certain of its current or former employees and officers that operate the respective funds, for which we have accrued $7.0 million of compensation expense as of June 30,
2020 that it considered probable of payment in September 2020 (and which has been paid as of the date of this Annual Report). As of June 30, 2020, GAIN had accrued an
additional $6.6 million of capital gains-based incentive fees payable to the Adviser Subsidiary, none of which has been recorded by us as revenue or a receivable since the
required realized capital gains thresholds had not been achieved.

The Adviser Subsidiary maintains several income-based and capital gains-based carried interest plans (collectively, “the Carried Interest Plans”) for the
benefit of its current and former employees and officers which provides incentive compensation that is linked to the performance-based incentive fees that it earns. Under the
terms of the Carried Interest Plans, a significant portion of the incentive fees earned, net of credits against those fees, are paid out as compensation. The Adviser Subsidiary may
retain certain unallocated portions of the incentive fees under the agreements from time to time at its discretion. Our ability to continue to generate incentive fees and other fees
is an important element of our business, and these items have historically accounted for a significant portion of our revenue and related expenses.

Administration Fees. The Administrator Subsidiary has entered into an Administration Agreement with each of the Existing Gladstone Funds and its other
affiliates, pursuant to which it furnishes such funds and other companies with accounting, valuation, legal, compliance, and other services. Pursuant to the Administration
Agreements, the Existing Gladstone Funds and the Administrator Subsidiary’s other affiliates collectively pay the costs and expenses of the Administrator Subsidiary to perform
the administrative services, which are primarily rent and the salaries, benefits and expenses of the Administrator Subsidiary’s employees, including the chief financial officer
and treasurer, chief compliance officer, chief valuation officer, and general counsel and secretary (and the staffs of all of the foregoing) of each of the Existing Gladstone Funds
and the Administrator Subsidiary’s other affiliates. Administration fee revenue is recognized when it is earned.
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Investment Banking Fees (Other Financial Services Fees): Investment banking fees include fees (1) received by the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary for providing
investment banking and due diligence services to certain portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN, (2) received by the Adviser Subsidiary for providing management or
advisory services to certain portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN and (3) received by theBroker-Dealer Subsidiary for providing mortgage placement services to GOOD
and LAND. Due to uncertainty surrounding the closing of related deals, these fees are recognized when the transaction occurs and the fees are collected. Such fees may be
received in advance and, if so, are recorded as deferred revenue in our consolidated balance sheets and are refundable until earned. To the extent that the Adviser Subsidiary
receives any fees directly from a portfolio company of either GLAD or GAIN for any such services, 100% of such fees are credited against the investment advisory fees
otherwise due to the Adviser Subsidiary pursuant to the applicable Advisory Agreement.

Securities Trade Commissions. Securities trade commission income includes dealer manager and broker dealer commissions received by the Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary pursuant to its role in distributing certain shares of Series B and Series C preferred stock of LAND, Series F preferred stock of GOOD, and notes of GAIN through
the independent broker dealer network. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary provides certain sales, promotional and marketing services in connection with such offerings and in return
is paid (1) selling commissions of up to 7.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of the Land Series B and up to 6.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of the LAND Series C, the
GOOD Series F and the GAIN notes offerings, and (2) a dealer manager fee of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of each of the offerings. Fees are generated and
earned on a trade-date basis, when the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary’s obligation is satisfied.

Fee Credits. Fee credits historically consist of non-contractual, unconditional and irrevocable waivers of loan servicing fees, investment advisory fees and
incentive fees otherwise due to the Adviser Subsidiary from the Existing Gladstone Funds under the Advisory Agreements. Such credits are either related to: (1) certain
investment banking fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN, (2) loan servicing fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from
certain subsidiaries of GLAD and GAIN, (3) a portion of the annual review fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from certain portfolio companies of GLAD and GAIN,

(4) other amounts granted to allow the Existing Gladstone Funds to comply with the requirements of their credit facilities or maintain the desired level of distributions to their
stockholders, or (5) a reduction in the investment advisory fees received in connection with syndicated loan investments held by GLAD or GAIN. Revenues are presented net of
any related fee credits.

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense. Our employee compensation and benefits expense reflects compensation (primarily salary and bonus) of our
employees through our Adviser Subsidiary and Administrator Subsidiary. Our compensation arrangements with our employees contain a significant performance-based bonus
component. Therefore, as our revenues increase, our compensation costs also rise. In addition, our compensation costs reflect increased headcount as we expand geographically
and create new products and businesses. Historically, all payments for services rendered by our management and selected other individuals engaged in our businesses have been
accounted for as employee compensation and benefits expense. As a result, our employee compensation and benefits expense has reflected payments for services rendered by
these individuals.

Operating Expenses Other Than Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense. The operating expenses other than salaries and employee benefits expenses consist
primarily of rent, depreciation, telecommunications, office expenses, professional services and other third-party expenses incurred in connection with operating our business
lines. We also incur third-party securities trade costs associated with the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary.

Other Income

Net Gains from Investment Activities. We expect to generate realized and unrealized gains and losses from underlying investments in the Future Gladstone
Funds. Net gains or losses from our investment activities would reflect a combination of internal and external factors. The external factors affecting the net gains associated with
our investing activities might vary by asset class but would be expected to be broadly driven by the market considerations discussed above. The key external measures that we
expect to monitor for purposes of deriving net gains from our investing activities include price/earnings ratios and EBITDA multiples for benchmark public companies and
comparable transactions and capitalization rates for real estate property investments. These measures generally represent the relative value at which comparable entities have
either been sold or at which they trade in the public marketplace. Other than the information from our managing directors, we refer to these measures generally as exit
multiples. Internal factors that would be expected to be managed and monitored include a variety of cash flow and operating performance measures, most commonly EBITDA
and net operating income. The management of the portfolio companies that the Existing Gladstone Funds invest in are incentivized to maximize these key measures and do so
by pursuing strategies to improve the operating investment performance and the capital structures of the companies. In all cases in the Existing Gladstone Funds (and our
interests in the Future Gladstone Funds) may entitle us to an incentive fee (pursuant to the existing advisory agreement between our Adviser Subsidiary and each of the Existing
Gladstone Funds) when investors in the fund achieve specified cumulative investment returns.
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Operating Metrics

The alternative asset management business is a complex business that is unusual due to its ability to support rapid growth without requiring substantial capital
investment. However, there also can be volatility associated with its earnings and cash flow. Since our inception, we have developed and used various supplemental operating
metrics to assess and monitor the operating performance of our various alternative asset management businesses in order to monitor the effectiveness of our value creating
strategies.

Our assets under management increase primarily as a result of the Existing Gladstone Funds raising additional capital, either in the form of equity by selling
additional shares of capital stock to investors or in the form of debt via long term mortgages on the real estate held by certain of the Existing Gladstone Funds, the revolving
lines of credit available to the Existing Gladstone Funds and the issuance of notes by certain of the Existing Gladstone Funds. In the future, we expect our assets under
management will include the assets described above as well as the fair market value of assets or the total asset value of any Future Gladstone Funds.

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Following is a discussion of our consolidated results of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The following tables set forth
information regarding our results of operations and certain key operating metrics for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019
Revenues (Related Party)
Investment advisory and loan servicing fees, net $ 22,363,616 $ 19,388,476
Incentive fees, net 18,735,374 12,264,680
Administration fees 6,162,669 5,516,197
Investment banking fees 6,722,052 8,521,862
Annual review fees 434,864 578,003
Property management fees 359,317 295,551
Securities trade commissions 7,102,719 5,586,140
Other income 396,301 126,553
Total revenues 62,276,912 52,277,462
Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 43,449,146 37,709,688
Rent 878,137 709,051
Depreciation 135,455 101,527
Telecommunications 514,044 522,802
Office expenses 275,378 379,243
Professional services 738,921 569,998
Securities trade costs 7,082,864 5,529,337
Other operating expenses 1,089,543 1,186,205
Total expenses 54,163,488 46,707,851
Income from operations 8,113,424 5,569,611
Dividends from marketable securities 93,774 341,562
Realized gain on marketable securities 48,873 174,290
Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable securities — (243,147)
Net income before income taxes 8,256,071 5,842,316
Income tax provision (2,146,323) (1,489,641)
Net income $ 6,109,748 $ 4,352,675
Net income per share attributable to common stock—basic
and diluted $ 61,097.48 $ 43,526.75
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding—
basic and diluted 100 100
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Revenues — Investment Advisory and Loan Servicing Fees

The following tables reflect the components (by Existing Gladstone Fund) of investment advisory and loan servicing fees for the fiscal years ended June 30,

2020 and 2019:
2020 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND®) Total
Base management fees $ 7,381,423 § 11,830,794 § 5415101 § 3,824,734 § 28,452,052
Loan servicing fees 5,618,789 6,815,731 — — 12,434,520
Loan servicing fee credit (5,618,789) (6,815,731) — — (12,434,520)
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers (1,693,938) (3,948,383) — — (5,642,321)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (446,115) — — — (446,115)
Investment advisory and loan servicing fee, net $ 5241370 $§ 7882411 $§ 5415101 $ 3,824,734 § 22,363,616
2019 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND®) Total
Base management fees $  7,195097 $ 12812,329 § 5,058,535 § 3,308,478 $ 28,374,439
Loan servicing fees 5,050,967 6,839,215 — — 11,890,182
Loan servicing fee credit (5,050,967) (6,839,215) — — (11,890,182)
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers (1,187,838) (5,770,917) — (1,648,381) (8,607,136)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (378,827) — — — (378,827)
Investment advisory and loan servicing fee, net $ 5628432 § 7041412 $§ 5058535 § 1,660,097 § 19,388,476

1) On January 14, 2020, LAND amended and restated its existing Advisory Agreement with the Advisory Subsidiary to change the calculation of the base management
fee from an annual rate of 2.0% of total adjusted common equity (as defined in the Advisory Agreement in effect at such time) to an annual rate of 0.5% of Gross
Tangible Real Estate (as defined in the current Advisory Agreement) commencing with the quarter ended March 31, 2020.

Incentive Fees

The following tables reflect the components (by Existing Gladstone Fund) of incentive fees for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Total
Incentive fees $ 5385470 $ 10,386,635 $§ 4,106,361 $ 2,180,570 $ 22,059,036
Incentive fee waiver (3,323,662) — — — (3,323,662)

Incentive fee, net $ 2,061,808 $ 10386,635 $ 4106361 § 2,180,570 $ 18,735,374

2019 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Total
Incentive fees $ 5549,080 $ 5420850 $ 3367474 § 628,098 $ 14,965,502
Incentive fee waiver (1,922,745) — — (778,077) (2,700,822)

Incentive fee, net $ 3626335 $§ 5420850 $ 3367474 § (149,979) $ 12,264,680

1) On April 14, 2020, GLAD amended and restated its existing Advisory Agreement with the Advisory Subsidiary to change the calculation of the incentive fee. The
Amended Agreement revised the “hurdle rate” included in the calculation of the Incentive Fee for the period beginning April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021,
increasing the hurdle rate from 1.75% per quarter (7% annualized) to 2.00% per quarter (8% annualized) and increasing the excess Incentive Fee hurdle rate from
2.1875% per quarter (8.75% annualized) to 2.4375% per quarter (9.75% annualized). The calculation of the other fees in the Advisory Agreement remains unchanged.
The revised Incentive Fee calculation began with the fee calculations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020.
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Credits to Investment Advisory and Loan Servicing Fees and Incentive Fees

The following tables reflect the components (by Existing Gladstone Fund) of credits granted by us against investment advisory and loan servicing fees and
incentive fees for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Total
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers $  (1,693,938) $ (3,948,383) $ — 3 — $ (5,642,321)
Loan servicing fee credit (5,618,789) (6,815,731) — — (12,434,520)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (446,115) — — — (446,115)
Incentive fee waiver (3,323,662) — — — (3,323,662)
Total credits $ (11,082,504) $ (10,764,114) §$ — 8 — $ (21,846,618)
2019 GLAD GAIN GOOD LAND Total
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers $ (1,187,838) $§ (5,770917) $ — $ (1,648,381) $ (8,607,136)
Loan servicing fee credit (5,050,967) (6,839,215) — — (11,890,182)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (378,827) — — — (378,827)
Incentive fee waiver (1,922,745) — — (778,077) (2,700,822)
Total credits $  (8,540,377) $ (12,610,132) $ — $ (2,426,458) $ (23,576,967)

Revenues (which is net of credits) were $62.3 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, an increase of $10.0 million, or 19%, compared with the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019. The overall increase was the result of $8.2 million of increases in net fees and a $1.5 million increase in securities trade commissions.

Gross base management fees and loan servicing fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $40.9 million, an increase of $0.6 million, or 2%, compared
with the prior year, primarily due to increased assets under management of GLAD and increases in stockholders’ equity of GOOD and LAND year-over-year, on which fees
were based. The portion of fees related to base management fees increased to $28.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 from $28.4 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019, primarily as a result of growth in assets under management of GLAD and growth in stockholders’ equity of GOOD and LAND. Assets under management
increased year over year primarily because of additional capital offerings by GOOD and LAND and their ability to redeploy the proceeds from such offerings in additional
assets, with such increase partially offset in the case of GLAD and GAIN by negative valuation adjustments resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic .

Loan servicing fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $12.4 million, an increase of $0.5 million, or 5%, compared with the prior year. Since GLAD
and GAIN own indirectly the loans subject to the loan servicing fees, all loan-servicing fees earned by the Adviser Subsidiary are credited directly against the investment
advisory fees otherwise due and payable to the Adviser Subsidiary by GLAD and GAIN.

Investment advisory and loan servicing fee revenue (which is net of credits) was $22.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, an increase of
$3.0 million, or 15%, compared with the prior year. The increase in revenue was due to a decrease in non-contractual, unconditional and irrevocable fee waivers that we granted.

Gross incentive fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $22.1 million, an increase of $7.1 million, or 47%, compared with the prior year, primarily
due to an $8.1 million capital gains-based incentive fee from GAIN and $2.2 million of increases in income-based incentive fees earned from GOOD and LAND. These were
offset by a decrease in income-based incentive fees earned from GAIN of $3.1 million and GLAD of $0.1 million due to declines in asset values. Incentive fee credits relate to
non-contractual voluntary waivers of incentive fee income credited against incentive fees earned to support such funds maintaining distributions to their respective stockholders.
Incentive fee revenue (which is net of credits) increased $6.5 million, or 53%, to $18.7 million, due primarily to the capital gains-based incentive fee from GAIN and a decrease
in the fee waivers granted to LAND, reduced by an increase in the fee waivers granted to GLAD.

Administration fees represent reimbursement of the expense of our Administrator Subsidiary for providing administrative services to the Existing Gladstone
Funds. Administrative fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $6.2 million, an increase of $0.6 million, or 12%, compared with the prior year, due primarily to salary,
bonus and benefit increases from an increase in headcount and market-based compensation adjustments. The administration fees earned by the Administrator Subsidiary are
charged based on and entirely offset by the expenses of the Administrator Subsidiary. As a result, the administration fee revenue earned by the Administrator Subsidiary does
not directly affect our operating or net income.
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Investment banking fees typically include revenues earned for services offered to the portfolb companies of the Existing Gladstone Funds for transaction
structuring and loan financing. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, investment banking fees were $6.7 million, a decrease of $1.8 million, or 21%, from the prior year, due
mainly to a decreased dollar volume ofnew investment transactions by GAIN compared to the prior year.

Securities trade commissions include dealer manager and broker-dealer commissions received by the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary pursuant to its role in
distributing certain shares of preferred stock and notes of its affiliates through an independent broker-dealer network. Fees are generated and earned on a trade-date basis. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, securities trade commission fee revenue was $7.1 million, an increase of $1.5 million, or 27%, compared with the prior year, as a result of
an increase in the number of shares of non-traded preferred stock sold by LAND year-over-year. Due to our reliance on the independent selling network for such securities,
securities trade costs almost entirely offset the related securities trade commissions.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $54.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, an increase of $7.5 million, or 16%, compared with the prior year. The change
was primarily due to an increase of $5.7 million, or 15%, in salaries and employee benefits of the Adviser Subsidiary from the net addition of personnel to support the growth of
each of our business areas, including office openings and expansion of LAND in California, from market adjustments to compensation and from higher bonus and incentive
compensation driven by our favorable financial performance. Securities trade costs increased by $1.6 million, which relates to a corresponding increase in securities trade
commissions. Professional services increased by $0.2 million primarily due to higher legal fees.

Dividends, Realized and Unrealized Gains on Marketable Securities

Dividends, realized gains and unrealized gains from marketable securities held in our non-qualified elective deferred compensation plan decreased by
$0.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 compared to the prior year primarily due to lower dividend income resulting from the liquidation of the investments in the
deferred compensation plan on January 3, 2020.

Income Tax Provision

The Company’s net income is taxed at regular corporate tax rates for both United States Federal and state purposes. We recorded an income tax provision of
$2.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, which represents a combined Federal and state effective tax rate of 26.0% of net income before income taxes. This
compares to an income tax provision of $1.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, which represents a combined Federal and state effective tax rate of 25.5% of net
income before income taxes. The current and prior period effective tax rates differ from the Federal statutory tax rate of 21% due primarily to the effect of state taxes.

As further described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report, in October 2018, we terminated our deferred
compensation plan and ceased permitting participants to make further contributions into the plan. As of January 3, 2020, all remaining obligations were valued, the trust was
liquidated, and the obligations were paid to participants in a subsequent payroll. Prior to its liquidation, the Company’s sponsorship of the plan resulted in the recognition of
deferred tax assets since the deferred compensation was non-deductible in the current period tax returns. As a result of the termination of the deferred compensation plan and
distribution of its assets in January 2020, the payments to participants will give rise to income tax deductions in our tax return for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for further disclosure of the elements of tax expense and the tax assets and
liabilities.

In February 2020, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) communicated to the Company that it had been selected for a routine audit of its Federal income tax
return for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The Company has responded to the IRS’s information document requests and is in discussions with the IRS to close out the audit.
The outcome of this audit is not currently determinable but is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

Net Income

Our net income of $6.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was an increase of $1.8 million, or 40%, compared to the prior year, due primarily to
higher investment advisory and loan servicing fees and incentive fees that were partially offset by higher salaries and employee benefits expenses and securities trade costs.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Historical Liquidity and Capital Resources

On a historical basis, we have drawn on the capital resources of our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, David Gladstone, together with the
committed capital from our lines of credit provided by banks and the fee income earned by our subsidiaries in order to fund our operating expenses. In addition, we require
capital resources to support the working capital needs of our businesses as well as to fund growth and investments in new business initiatives. We have multiple sources of
liquidity to meet these capital needs, including accumulated earnings of our subsidiaries as well as access to the committed credit facilities described in Note 3 to the Financial
Statements.

Our historical statements of cash flows reflect the cash flows of our operating business. We have managed our historical liquidity and capital requirements by
focusing on our cash flows. Our primary cash flow activities are: (1) receiving cash flow from operations; (2) receiving income from investment activities of the Adviser
Subsidiary, including liquidation of investments used to settle the deferred compensation plan liability; and (3) funding capital expenditures.

Cash Flows
The following table sets forth our cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Year Ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2020 2019
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4939 $ 5,531
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 8,414 (798)
Net increase in cash $ 13,353 § 4,733

Operating Activities

Our net cash flow provided by operating activities was $4.9 million and $5.5 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These
amounts include net income produced from our operations plus changes in our other operating assets and liabilities. Cash provided by operating activities of $4.9 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 included $6.1 million of net income plus $4.9 million of increases in accrued payroll, $8.6 decrease in deferred compensation and $2.4 million
of net decreases in other assets or creases in other liabilities. Cash provided by operating activities of $5.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 included $4.4 million
of net income plus $2.3 million of increases in accrued payroll and $0.7 million of net decreases in other assets or increases in other liabilities, reduced by $1.9 million of
decreases in income taxes payable.

Investing Activities

Our net cash flow provided by investing activities was $8.4 million and $(0.8) million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Our
investing activities included purchases of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements and cash provided from our liquidation of the deferred compensation plan.

Our Future Sources of Cash and Liquidity Needs

We expect that our primary liquidity needs will be cash to: (1) provide capital to facilitate the growth of our existing asset management and financial services
businesses; (2) provide capital to facilitate our expansion into new businesses that are complementary to our existing asset management and financial services businesses and
that can benefit from being affiliated with us; (3) pay operating expenses, including cash compensation to our employees; (4) fund capital expenditures; (5) repay borrowings and
related interest costs; (6) pay income taxes; and (7) make dividends to our stockholder. Taking into account generally expected market conditions, we believe that the sources of
liquidity described below will be sufficient to fund our working capital requirements.

In addition to our current liquidity, an additional source of liquidity will consist of the net proceeds from the Bond Offering. In the future we expect to also
receive cash from time to time from: (1) cash generated from operations; (2) incentive income realizations; and (3) realizations on the investments that we will make. In the
future, we may also issue additional securities to investors and our employees with the objective of increasing our available capital which would be used for purposes similar to
those noted above.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for a
description of recent accounting pronouncements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2020 or June 30, 2019.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingencies

We lease our primary office space and certain office equipment under agreements that expire in various years through 2025. In connection with certain lease
agreements, we are responsible for escalation payments. The contractual obligation table below includes only guaranteed minimum lease payments for such leases and does not
project potential escalation or other lease-related payments. The following table summarizes the future lease payments due under cancellable operating leases by fiscal year:

Rental Agreements for Office Space

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 745,509
2022 766,975
2023 784,936
2024 808,596
2025 690,632
Total contractual repayments 3,796,648
Imputed interest (479,735)
Operating lease liability $ 3,316,913

Guarantee

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, we guaranteed the entire line of credit which the Adviser Subsidiary had available to it. There were no borrowings outstanding
as of June 30, 2020 or June 30, 2019. Under the current extension dated January 15, 2020, availability under the line is $2 million through January 15, 2021.

Indemnifications

In many of our service contracts, we agree to indemnify the third-party service provider under certain circumstances. The terms of the indemnities vary from
contract to contract and the amount of indemnification liability, if any, cannot be determined and has not been included in the table above or recorded in our financial
statements as of June 30, 2020 or June 30, 2019.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our primary exposure to market risk is related to our role as parent to the Adviser Subsidiary, the investment adviser to the Existing Gladstone Funds and
general partner (in the Future Gladstone Funds) and the sensitivity to movements in the fair value of their investments, including the effect on base management and incentive
fees, financial services fees and investment income.

The market price of investments may significantly fluctuate during the period of investment. Investments may decline in value due to factors affecting
securities markets generally or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of an investment may decline due to general market conditions which are not
specifically related to such investment, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or
currency rates or adverse investor sentiment in general. They may also decline due to factors that affect a particular industry (or industries), such as labor shortages or increased
production costs and competitive conditions within an industry.

The Existing Gladstone Funds’ investments are diversified across a variety of industries and geographic locations, and as such we are broadly exposed to the
market conditions and business environments referred to above. As a result, although our funds are exposed to market risks, we continuously seek to limit concentration of

exposure in any particular sector so as to minimize fluctuations to our revenue.
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Effect on Investment Advisory Fees

Investment advisory fees are generally based on a fixed percentage of average total assets for GAIN and GLAD. For LAND, it was based on total adjusted
common equity until January 1, 2020, and the gross cost of tangible real estate owned by LAND thereafter. For GOOD, it was based on adjusted stockholders’ equity until July
1, 2020, and the gross cost of tangible real estate owned by GOOD thereafter. As a result of the basis for these fees, investment advisory fees may be affected by changes in the
market value of the Gladstone BDC’s underlying investments or the cost of the real estate owned by the Gladstone REITs. The overall impact of a short-term change in market
value may be mitigated by a number of factors including fee definitions that are not based on market value, definitions which include certain adjustments, market value
definitions that exclude the impact of realized and/or unrealized gains and losses, market value definitions based on beginning of the period values or a form of average market
value including daily, monthly or quarterly averages as well monthly or quarterly payment terms.

Effect on Incentive Fees

Incentive fees are based on certain specific hurdle rates as defined in the applicable Advisory Agreement. See Note 6, Related Party Transactions,” to our
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report. The incentive fee entitles the Adviser Subsidiary (or an affiliate) to an allocation of income or capital gains, as
applicable, from an Existing Gladstone Fund. Changes in the fair values of the Gladstone BDC’s investments may materially impact performance fees depending on the
respective funds’ performance relative to applicable hurdles or benchmarks.

Credit Risk

We are party to agreements providing for various financial services and transactions that contain an element of risk in the event that the counterparties are
unable to meet the terms of such agreements. In such agreements, we depend on the respective counterparty to make payment or otherwise perform. We generally endeavor to
minimize our risk of exposure by limiting to reputable financial institutions the counterparties with which we enter into financial transactions. In other circumstances,
availability of financing from financial institutions may be uncertain due to market events, and we may not be able to access these financing markets.

Interest Rate Risk

We currently have limited debt exposure, but do have significant cash investments, which have been negatively impacted by the rate of interest we earn on
them. As a result, there can be no assurance that a significant change in market interest rates will not have a material adverse effect on our operations.

The Gladstone BDCs are subject to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. Because our BDCs borrow money to make investments, their
net investment income is dependent upon the difference between the rates at which they borrow funds and the rates at which they invest those funds. As a result, there can be no
assurance that a significant change in market interest rates will not have a material adverse effect on their net investment income and thus the income-based incentive fees that
our Adviser Subsidiary earns. The Gladstone BDCs use a combination of debt and equity capital to finance their investing activities. They may use interest rate risk
management techniques to limit their exposure to interest rate fluctuations. Such techniques may include various interest rate hedging activities to the extent permitted by the
1940 Act.

The Gladstone BDCs make direct or indirect investments in companies that utilize leverage in their capital structure, including leverage incurred by the
company resulting from the structuring of the fund’s investment in the portfolio company. The degree of leverage employed varies amongst portfolio companies based on
market conditions and the portfolio company’s financial situation. The Gladstone BDCs do not monitor leverage employed by their portfolio companies in the aggregate.
However, for companies under our funds’ control or over which our funds’ have significant influence, it is our policy to endeavor to cause the portfolio company to maintain
appropriate controls over its liquidity and interest rate exposures.

In addition, the Gladstone REITs are exposed to interest rate risk. Certain of their leases contain escalations based on market indices, and the interest rate on
certain of their borrowings are variable. Although LAND and GOOD seek to mitigate this risk by structuring such provisions of their loans and leases to contain a minimum
interest rate or escalation rate, as applicable, these features do not eliminate this risk. To that end, they may enter into derivative contracts to attempt to manage their exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.
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Item 3. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of our executive officers and Directors.

Name Age Position

David Gladstone 78 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Michael Malesardi 60 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Terry Brubaker 76 Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

Michael LiCalsi 50 Director, Executive Vice President of Administration, General Counsel and Secretary
David Gladstone

Mr. Gladstone is our founder, sole shareholder, through his ownership in TGC LTD, and director, and has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors since our inception in 2009. He also founded and serves as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of each
Existing Gladstone Fund and our Adviser Subsidiary, as well as Chief Executive Officer of our Administrator Subsidiary, and a member of the board of managers of our
Broker-Dealer Subsidiary. Prior to founding GLAD, Mr. Gladstone served as Vice Chairman then Chairman of the Board of Directors of American Capital Ltd. a publicly
traded leveraged buyout fund and mezzanine debt finance company, from June 1997 to August 2001. From 1974 to February 1997, Mr. Gladstone held various positions,
including Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, with Allied Capital Corporation, Allied Capital Corporation II, Allied Capital Lending Corporation, or, collectively, the Allied
Companies, and Allied Capital Advisers, Inc., a registered investment advisor that managed the Allied Companies. During Mr. Gladstone’s tenure with them, the Allied
Companies were the largest group of publicly-traded mezzanine debt funds in the United States and were managers of two private venture capital limited partnerships. From
1991 to 1997, Mr. Gladstone served either as Chairman of the Board of Directors or President of Allied Capital Commercial Corporation, a publicly traded REIT that invested
in real estate loans to small and medium-sized businesses, managed by Allied Capital Advisers, Inc. From 1992 to 1997, Mr. Gladstone served as a Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Business Mortgage Investors, a privately held mortgage REIT managed by Allied Capital Advisers, which invested in loans to small and medium-
sized businesses. Mr. Gladstone is also a past Director of Capital Automotive REIT, a real estate investment trust that purchased and net leased real estate to automobile
dealerships. Mr. Gladstone served as a Director of The Riggs National Corporation (the parent of Riggs Bank) from 1993 to May 1997 and of Riggs Bank from 1991 to 1993.
He previously served as a Trustee of the George Washington University and currently is Trustee Emeritus. He is a past member of the Listings and Hearings Committee of the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., the predecessor to FINRA. He is a past member of the Advisory Committee to Women’s Growth Capital Fund, a venture
capital firm that finances women-owned small businesses. Mr. Gladstone was the founder and managing member of The Capital Investors, LLC, a group of angel investors, and
is currently a Member Emeritus. Mr. Gladstone holds an MBA from the Harvard Business School, an MA from American University and a BA from the University of Virginia.
Mr. Gladstone has co-authored two books on financing for small and medium-sized businesses, Venture Capital Handbook and Venture Capital Investing.

Michael Malesardi

Mr. Malesardi has been our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (principal financial and accounting officer) since joining Gladstone in July 2018 on an
interim basis and since September 2018 on a permanent basis. He started his career with Price Waterhouse in 1982 in Washington, DC and Calgary, Alberta, rising to Audit
Senior Manager. From 1992 to 2015 he served in financial leadership roles of several public and private companies including Presidio Networked Solutions, AES, OmniSky,
PSINet and Watson Wyatt. From 2015 to 2016 he served as Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Chief Ethics Officer of NVR. From 2016 to 2018 he provided
financial consulting services to several public companies. A CPA licensed in the Commonwealth of Virginia, Mr. Malesardi is a graduate of Washington and Lee University
with a B.S. in Business Administration and Accounting.

Terry Brubaker

Mr. Brubaker has served as our Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Operating Officer, and Assistant Secretary since our inception in 2009.
Mr. Brubaker has also served as: (1) Vice Chairman of GLAD, GAIN, GOOD and LAND since 2004, 2005, 2004 and 2007, respectively; (2) Chief Operating Officer of
GLAD, GAIN, GOOD and LAND since 2001, 2005, 2003 and 2007, respectively; and (3) Assistant Secretary of GLAD and GAIN since October 2012. In addition,
Mr. Brubaker has served as the Vice Chairman, Chief Operating Officer and a Director of the Adviser Subsidiary since 2006. He also served as President of our Adviser
Subsidiary from inception through February 2006, when he assumed duties of Vice Chairman. Mr. Brubaker has also served as Chief Operating Officer of the Administrator
Subsidiary since its inception in 2005. In March 1999, Mr. Brubaker founded and, until May 1, 2003, served as Chairman of Heads Up Systems, a company providing
processing industries with leading edge technology. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Brubaker served as Vice President of the paper group for the American Forest & Paper

27



Association. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Brubaker served as President of Interstate Resources, a pulp and paper company. From 1991 to 1992, Mr. Brubaker served as Presidenbf
IRI, a radiation measurement equipment manufacturer. From 1981 to 1991, Mr. Brubaker held several management positions at James River Corporation, a forest and paper
company, including Vice President of Strategic Planning from 1981 to 1982, Group Vice President of the Groveton Group and Premium Printing Papers from 1982 to 1990 and
Vice President of Human Resources Development in 1991. From 1976 to 1981, Mr. Brubaker was Strategic Planning Manager and Marketing Manager of White Papers at
Boise Cascade. Previously, Mr. Brubaker was a Senior Engagement Manager at McKinsey & Company from 1972 to 1976. Prior to 1972, Mr. Brubaker was aUnited States
Navy Fighter Pilot. Mr. Brubaker holds an MBA from the Harvard Business School and a BSE from Princeton University.

Michael LiCalsi

Mr. LiCalsi has been our General Counsel and Secretary since 2009 and our Executive Vice President of Administration and a Director since May 2020 and
February 2020, respectively. In addition, Mr. LiCalsi has served as General Counsel and Secretary since October 2009 and October 2012, respectively, of our Adviser
Subsidiary, our Administrator Subsidiary and each of the Existing Gladstone Funds. Mr. LiCalsi was also appointed President of our Administrator Subsidiary in July 2013.
Mr. LiCalsi also serves in several capacities for our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary, serving as a member of its board of managers since 2010, a managing principal since 2011, and
Chief Legal Officer and Secretary since 2010. Mr. LiCalsi currently holds his series 7 and 24 licenses at our Broker-Dealer Subsidiary. A graduate of the George Mason
University School of Law, where he served as Editor-in-Chief of the George Mason Law Review from 2004 to 2005. Mr. LiCalsi is currently a member of the Virginia State
Bar and District of Columbia Bar. Before joining the Gladstone Companies, Mr. LiCalsi served as an Associate Attorney in the Washington, D.C. office of Baker Botts L.L.P.,
a multinational law firm. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. LiCalsi held various positions at TD Waterhouse Investor Services, Inc. (currently TD Ameritrade, Inc.), including those of
regional and national vice president. Prior to his tenure in the financial services industry, Mr. LiCalsi graduated from Rutgers College, with a BA in History.

Director Compensation

Our employee Directors do not receive any compensation for their service as Directors.
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COMPENSATION

The services necessary for the operation of our business are provided by our officers and other employees through our Adviser Subsidiary and Administrator
Subsidiary.

Our named executive officers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, consisting of our principal executive officer and the next two most highly compensated
executive officers were:

. Mr. Gladstone, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, who is an employee of and compensated directly by our Adviser Subsidiary;
. Mr. Brubaker, our Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer, who is an employee of and compensated directly by our Adviser Subsidiary; and
. Mr. Dullum, our Executive Vice President of Private Equity (Buyouts), who is an employee of and compensated directly by our Adviser Subsidiary.

2020 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth summary information concerning the compensation earned by our named executive officers for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020. All compensation in the table below was paid through the Adviser Subsidiary and reflects compensation for services provided to us as well as the Existing Gladstone
Funds.

Nonequity
Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Comp tion Comp tion(1) Total
David Gladstone (2)
President and Chief Executive Officer 2020 $ 451,000 $ 531,000 $ 2,475,504 $ 30,316 $ 3,487,820
Terry Brubaker (2)
Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer 2020 219,000 425,000 1,880,095 2,893,969 5,418,064
David Dullum (2)
Executive Vice President of Private Equity

(Buyouts) 2020 420,000 1,733,000 950,514 30,349 3,133,863
@) Amounts in this column include 401(k) employer safe harbor contributions and the premiums paid by the Adviser Subsidiary or the Administrator Subsidiary for

health insurance. For Terry Brubaker, includes $2,863,653 of distributions related to deferred compensation under the Company’s prior Executive Nonqualified
Excess Plan. Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for further information.
2) Reflects compensation paid to the executive by our Adviser Subsidiary.

Non-Equity Incentive Plan

The Adviser Subsidiary is party to certain agreements with certain current and former employees and officers of the Adviser Subsidiary that operate the
respective Existing Gladstone Funds whereby substantially all of the incentive fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from the Existing Gladstone Funds are divided among
such employees and officers. The Adviser Subsidiary may retain certain unallocated portions of the incentive fees pursuant to such agreements from time to time in its
discretion.

Employment Agreements

Our Adviser Subsidiary is currently a party to employment agreements with each of Messrs. Gladstone and Brubaker dated April 22, 2004 and May 26, 2019,
respectively. The employment agreement with Mr. Gladstone had an initial three-year term which automatically renews for additional successive one-year periods unless either
the Company or Mr. Gladstone provides three months prior written notice of their intent to terminate the employment agreement. The employment agreement with Mr.
Brubaker is at will. The employment agreements provided for an annual base salary of $200,000 and $219,000 for Messrs. Gladstone and Brubaker, respectively, and the
opportunity for annual salary increases for Mr. Gladstone based on performance. The annual salary increases received by Mr. Gladstone are reflected in the Summary
Compensation Table. As a result of performance-based increases, the annual base salary for Mr. Gladstone is currently $437,000. Messrs. Gladstone and Brubaker are eligible
for a discretionary incentive bonus as determined in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee. Under the agreements, Messrs. Gladstone and
Brubaker are also entitled to participate in any plan based on the distribution of incentive fees paid to our Adviser Subsidiary by entities it manages or advises.
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In the event Mr. Gladstone is terminated without “Cause” (as defined in his employment agreement) or in connection with a “Change in Control” (as defined
in his employment agreement) then, subject to his execution of a release of claims and further subject to his continued compliance with his post-termination obligations, he will
receive from the Adviser Subsidiary monthly severance payments over a two-year period in an aggregate amount equal to two years of his base salary in effect as of his date of
termination plus any discretionary bonus he received during the previous fiscal year.

In addition, each employment agreement contains a covenant not to compete, which covers a term of one year with respect to Mr. Gladstone and two years
with respect to Mr. Brubaker beginning on the date of termination of employment by our Adviser Subsidiary. Messrs. Gladstone and Brubaker are also subject to non-
solicitation restrictions with respect to our Adviser Subsidiary’s investors, customers and employees during their employment and for the one-year period thereafter.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Except as disclosed above, we do not have, nor do we intend to adopt, a formal plan with respect to termination or change in control benefits payable to our
named executive officers.

Item 4. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

The Gladstone Companies, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company, controlled by our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, David Gladstone,
currently owns all of our outstanding shares of common stock.

Item 5. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTION

We and our subsidiaries engage in transactions with affiliates as part of our business. Compensation for, and expenses of, these transactions are governed by
advisory and administration agreements between the parties. See Note 6, “Related Party Transactions,” to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report for additional information regarding related party transactions.

Expense Sharing Agreement

We are party to an expense sharing agreement with the Adviser Subsidiary. Under the expense sharing agreement, we reimburse the Adviser Subsidiary for
our allocable portion of expenses related to our office facilities, equipment, and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such facilities and certain other
administrative services necessary for the operation of our business that are provided to us by our officers and the other employees of the Adviser Subsidiary.

Advisory Agreements

The Adviser Subsidiary is a party to the Advisory Agreements, pursuant to which it serves as the investment adviser of each Existing Gladstone Fund, in each
case with which certain of our Directors, officers and/or employees are affiliated. Under the terms of the Advisory Agreements, the continuation of which is subject to annual
review and approval by the respective boards of such funds, the Adviser Subsidiary earns base management fees based on a percentage of adjusted total assets (in the case of
GLAD and GAIN), adjusted stockholders’ equity (in the case of GOOD) or the gross cost of tangible real estate (in the case of LAND) and performance-based incentive fees.

Administration Agreements

Our Administrator Subsidiary provides administrative services to us, the Existing Gladstone Funds as well as our Adviser Subsidiary and Broker-Dealer
Subsidiary. Pursuant to the Administration Agreements, the Administrator Subsidiary allocates the costs of administrative services and overhead and receives administrative fee
payments. Additionally, the Administrator Subsidiary is responsible for producing the financial statements and asset valuations, and handling compliance, legal, and other duties
for us, the Existing Gladstone Funds, and our subsidiaries.

Dealer Manager Agreements

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary was party to a dealer manager agreement with LAND, whereby the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary served as LAND’s exclusive
dealer manager in connection with its offering of up to 6,000,000 shares of its 6.00% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary provided
certain sales, promotional and marketing services to LAND in connection with the offering and LAND paid the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary (1) selling commissions of up to 7.0%
of the gross proceeds from sales of the preferred stock and (2) a dealer manager fee of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales. The
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Broker-Dealer Subsidiary could reallow the selling commissions to participating broker- dealers in the offering and reduce or eliminate its fees under certain circumstances
under the terms of the dealer manager agreement. The offering terminated on March 5, 2020, which was the date on which all the shares (6,000,000) offered in the primary
offering had been sold.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary is party to a dealer manager agreement with LAND, whereby the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary serves as LAND’s exclusive dealer
manager in connection with its offering of up to 26,000,000 shares of its 6.00% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary provides
certain sales, promotional and marketing services to LAND in connection with the offering and LAND pays the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary (1) selling commissions of up to 6.0%
of the gross proceeds from sales of the preferred stock and (2) a dealer manager fee of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary may reallow
the selling commissions to participating broker-dealers in the offering and reduce or eliminate its fees under certain circumstances under the terms of the dealer manager
agreement.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary is party to a dealer manager agreement with GOOD, whereby the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary serves as GOOD’s exclusive dealer
manager in connection with its offering of up to 26,000,000 shares of its 6.00% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary provides
certain sales, promotional and marketing services to GOOD in connection with the offering and GOOD pays the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary (1) selling commissions of up to
6.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of the preferred stock and (2) a dealer manager fee of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary may
reallow the selling commissions to participating broker-dealers in the offering and reduce or eliminate its fees under certain circumstances under the terms of the dealer
manager agreement.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary is party to a dealer manager agreement with GAIN, whereby the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary serves as GAIN’s exclusive dealer
manager in connection with its offering of up to $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 6.00% Notes due 2040. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary provides certain sales,
promotional and marketing services to GAIN in connection with the offering and GAIN pays the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary (1) selling commissions of up to 6.0% of the gross
proceeds from sales of the notes and (2) a dealer manager fee of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary may reallow the selling
commissions to participating broker dealers in the offering and reduce or eliminate its fees under certain circumstances under the terms of the dealer manager agreement.

Loan Servicing Agreements

Certain of GLAD’s and GAIN’s loan investments are held in their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries. Pursuant to the terms of the line of credit agreements
between the relevant subsidiary and its creditor banks, the Adviser Subsidiary for acting as the servicer of the loans and receives loan servicing fees for acting in such capacity.
Since GLAD and GAIN own these loans indirectly (through their 100% ownership of the relevant subsidiary), all loan-servicing fees earned by the Adviser Subsidiary are
credited directly against the investment advisory fees otherwise due and payable to the Adviser Subsidiary by GLAD and GAIN.

Guarantee

As of June 30, 2020, we guaranteed the entire line of credit which the Adviser Subsidiary had available to it. Under the current extension dated January 15,
2020, availability under the line was $2 million through January 15, 2021.
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Item 6. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of The Gladstone Companies, Inc.:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Gladstone Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, of owner’s equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the
“consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, VA
September 28, 2020

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004.
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The Gladstone Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Assets
Cash $ 46,863,959 $ 33,511,153
Accounts receivable, related parties 8,303,131 9,531,811
Income taxes receivable 464,805 126,859
Prepaid expenses 1,146,053 504,818
Marketable securities held for trading, at fair value — 8,576,388
Fixed assets less accumulated depreciation of $948,464 and $813,009 respectively 281,327 254,670
Intangible assets 152,266 152,266
Deferred tax asset, net 320,745 2,400,319
Right-of-use asset 3,186,688 —
Security deposit 66,663 62,369
Total assets $ 60,785,637 $ 55,120,653
Liabilities and Owner's Equity
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,309,049 $ 2,075,361
Accrued payroll 27,411,907 22,517,282
Deferred revenue 328,958 580,208
Deferred compensation plan — 8,576,388
Operating lease liability 3,316,913 —
Deferred liabilities — 62,352
Total liabilities 33,366,827 33,811,591
Commitments and contingencies (Refer to Note 8)
Owner's equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 3,000 authorized shares, 100 issued and
outstanding as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 5,049 5,049
Retained earnings 27,413,760 21,304,012
Total owner's equity 27,418,810 21,309,062
Total liabilities and owner's equity $ 60,785,637 $ 55,120,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Gladstone Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Revenues (Related Party)
Investment advisory and loan servicing fees, net (Refer to Notes 1 and 6) $ 22,363,616 $ 19,388,476
Incentive fees, net (Refer to Notes 1 and 6) 18,735,374 12,264,680
Administration fees 6,162,669 5,516,197
Investment banking fees 6,722,052 8,521,862
Annual review fees 434,864 578,003
Property management fees 359,317 295,551
Securities trade commissions 7,102,719 5,586,140
Other income 396,301 126,553
Total revenues 62,276,912 52,277,462
Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 43,449,146 37,709,688
Rent 878,137 709,051
Depreciation 135,455 101,527
Telecommunications 514,044 522,802
Office expenses 275,378 379,243
Professional services 738,921 569,998
Securities trade costs 7,082,864 5,529,337
Other operating expenses 1,089,543 1,186,205
Total expenses 54,163,488 46,707,851
Income from operations 8,113,424 5,569,611
Dividends from marketable securities 93,774 341,562
Realized gain on marketable securities 48,873 174,290
Unrealized (loss) on marketable securities — (243,147)
Net income before income taxes 8,256,071 5,842,316
Income tax provision (2,146,323) (1,489,641)
Net income $ 6,109,748 $ 4,352,675
Net income per share attributable to common stock - basic and diluted $ 61,097.48 $ 43,526.75
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding - basic and diluted 100 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Gladstone Companies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Owner’s Equity

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Balance, June 30, 2018
Net income

Balance, June 30, 2019
Net income

Balance, June 30, 2020

Common Stock

Number $0.01 Additional Total
of Par Paid-in Retained Owner's
Shares Value Capital Earnings Equity
100 1 5,049 16,951,337 $ 16,956,387
— — — 4,352,675 4,352,675
100 1 5,049 21,304,012 $ 21,309,062
— — — 6,109,748 6,109,748
100 1 5,049 27,413,760 $ 27,418,810

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Gladstone Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Unrealized loss on marketable securities
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision
Amortization of right-of-use asset from operating leases and operating lease
liabilities, net
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable, related parties
(Increase) in prepaid expenses
(Increase) in security deposits
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in accrued payroll
(Increase) in income taxes receivable
(Decrease) in income taxes payable
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue
(Decrease) increase in deferred compensation

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Redemptions of marketable securities
Purchases of furniture, fixtures, and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) in investing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Right-of-use asset from operating leases
Operating lease liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Gladstone Companies, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Nature of Business
Description of the Company

The Gladstone Companies, Inc. (“TGC INC”) was incorporated on January 1, 2010. TGC INC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Gladstone Companies, Ltd. (formerly
Gladstone Holding Corporation) (“TGC LTD”). TGC INC and its subsidiaries are hereafter collectively referred to as the “Company.”

The following chart summarizes the Company’s organizational structure as of June 30, 2020 and 2019. The Company’s headquarters are in McLean, Virginia (a suburb of
Washington, D.C.).

The Gladstone Companies,
Inc.
(U.5)
| 100% |
Gladstone Management Gladstone Administration,
Corporation LLC Gladstone Securities, LLC
(U.S) (US) (US)

Nature of Business

The Company is a leading alternative asset manager and provider of other administrative and financial services. It currently provides these services to four unconsolidated
public investment funds (the “Existing Gladstone Funds”), which are publicly traded, Nasdag-listed companies invested in alternative asset classes :

1. Gladstone Capital Corporation (“Capital”), a publicly traded business development company (“BDC”), primarily invests in debt securities of
established private lower middle market companies in the United States. Capital was established in 2001 and is an externally managed, closed-end,
non-diversified management investment company that has elected to be treated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. In addition, it has elected to be treated
as a RIC for Federal tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Code”) (Nasdaq: GLAD);

2. Gladstone Investment Corporation (“Investment”), a publicly traded BDC, primarily invests in debt and equity securities of lower middle market
private businesses operating in the United States (including in connection with management buyouts, recapitalizations or, to a lesser extent,
refinancings of existing debt facilities). Investment was established in 2005 and, like Capital, is an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified
management investment company that has elected to be treated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. In addition, it has elected to be treated as a RIC for
Federal tax purposes under the Code (Nasdaq: GAIN);

3. Gladstone Commercial Corporation (“Commercial”), a publicly traded real estate investment trust under Section 856 of the Code (“REIT”), focuses on
acquiring, owning and managing primarily office and industrial properties in the United States. Commercial was established in 2003 and is an
externally-managed REIT (Nasdaq: GOOD); and,

4.  Gladstone Land Corporation (“Land”), a publicly traded REIT, focuses on acquiring, owning and leasing farmland and farm-related properties in the
United States. Land was established in 2013 and is an externally-managed REIT (Nasdaq: LAND).

The Company generates its revenue from fees earned pursuant to advisory, administrative, broker-dealer and other agreements its subsidiaries have with the Existing
Gladstone Funds and to other affiliated entities. These fees are generated through:

. Gladstone Management Corporation, an investment adviser registered with the SEC (the “Adviser Subsidiary”).

. Gladstone Securities, LLC, a broker-dealer registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) and insured by the Securities
Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) (the “Broker-Dealer Subsidiary”), which provides distribution, investment banking, due diligence, dealer
manager, mortgage placement, and other financial services.
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. Gladstone Administration, LLC (the “Administrator Subsidiary”), which primarily provides administrative services to the Existing Gladsbne Funds,
including accounting, valuation, legal, compliance, and other services.

The Company consolidates two additional subsidiaries which had no active business activities, Gladstone Participation Fund, LLC (“Participation”) and Gladstone
Lending Corporation (“Lending”).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”).

Principles of Consolidation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TGC INC and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company may be required to consolidate entities that are determined to be Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”), where it is deemed to be the primary beneficiary of the
entity. The Company is determined to be the primary beneficiary when it has a controlling financial interest in the VIE, which is defined as possessing both (1) the power
to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance, and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE or the right to receive
benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE.

The Company first evaluates whether it holds a variable interest in an entity. Fees (for example, management and performance-related fees) that are customary and
commensurate with the level of services provided, and where the Company does not hold other economic interests in the entity that would absorb more than an
insignificant amount of the expected losses or returns of the entity, would not be considered a variable interest. The Company factors in all economic interests including
proportionate interests through related parties to determine if such interests are considered a variable interest. The Company’s primary interest is through market rate fees.
The Company has determined that none of its affiliates or wholly-owned subsidiaries qualify as VIEs.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries and affiliates qualify as voting interest entities under the voting interest model. Under the voting interest model, it consolidates
those entities it controls through a majority voting interest.

For operating entities over which it may exercise significant influence, but which do not meet the requirements for consolidation, the Company will use the equity method
of accounting whereby it records its share of the underlying income or losses of these entities. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no such entities included in the
financial statements that were accounted for under the equity method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

Segment Reporting

The Company manages its operations on an aggregated, single segment basis for purposes of assessing performance and making operating decisions, and, accordingly,
has only one reporting and operating segment.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Other Risks and Uncertainties

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. For the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, substantially all revenues and receivables were earned or derived from services provided to affiliated entities or their sub-affiliates.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and investments in money market funds with maturities of three months or less when purchased. All the Company’s
cash and cash equivalents are held in the custody of United States financial institutions. At times, amounts may exceed federally insured limits. The Company monitors
the credit standing of these financial institutions and mitigates risk by depositing funds with major banking institutions.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of regulatory fees and the purchase price for the broker-dealer license relating to the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary, as well as a website license held
by the Company. All the Company’s intangible assets are indefinite life assets and are therefore presented at gross carrying amounts. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually. There were no impairments for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standard Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”) defines fair value as the exit price, or the amount that would be received
upon sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a hierarchy
for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable
inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors market participants would use in valuing
the asset or liability developed based upon the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy of these inputs is broken down into three levels: Level 1
inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 inputs include (1) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, (2) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and (3) inputs (other than quoted prices) that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

As further described in Note 4, the Company maintained a non-qualified elective deferred compensation plan (the “Deferred Compensation Plan”) until its liquidation in
January 2020. The assets under the plan and the corresponding liability to the participants were measured at fair value on a recurring basis on the consolidated balance
sheet using quoted market prices. Prior to its liquidation, the assets were treated as trading securities for accounting purposes, with unrealized gains and losses included in
earnings. The assets of the Deferred Compensation Plan were classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (the Company had no financial instruments classified as
Level 2 or Level 3 as of or during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019). There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 during the years ended June 30, 2020 or 2019.
The following table summarizes the Company’s marketable securities held for trading as of June 30, 2019.

Level 1 Investments
June 30, 2019

Cost Fair Value
Marketable securities held for trading $ 8,383,019 $ 8,576,388
Total $ 8,383,019 $ 8,576,388

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are furniture, fixtures and equipment (including computer hardware), software, and leasehold improvements, and are recorded at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets (generally two to five years). Amortization of improvements to leased properties is computed using the straight-line method based upon the initial term
of the applicable lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements, whichever is shorter, and ranges from two to eight years. Routine expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Major betterments and improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement or disposition of fixed assets, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company
evaluates fixed assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying value may not be fully
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recovered. No impairment was recorded for the years ended June 30, 20 and 2019. The following table summarizes the Company’s fixed assets as of June 30, 2020 and
2019.

2020 2019
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 1,073,884 $ 953,894
Software 41,873 17,644
Leasehold improvements 114,034 96,141
Fixed assets, cost 1,229,791 1,067,679
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (948,464 ) (813,009)
Fixed assets, net book value $ 281327 $ 254,670

Revenue Recognition

The Company accounts for revenue under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606. The following describes
the revenue stream, performance obligations and associated timing of revenue recognition. Receivables related to fees are generally due 45 days after the end of the
quarter in which they are billed. Receivables related to securities trade commissions are due upon closing.

Investment Advisory and Loan Servicing Fees

Investment advisory fee revenue is earned from services provided by the Adviser Subsidiary to the Existing Gladstone Funds pursuant to the terms of an investment
advisory agreement that exists between the Adviser Subsidiary and each of the Existing Gladstone Funds (each, an “Advisory Agreement”). Investment advisory fee
revenue is recognized as the advisory services are provided, and any unpaid amounts are classified as accounts receivable, related party. The Company had investment
advisory fee receivables of $2,500,919 and $1,406,830 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Refer to Note 6 for further details on the terms of the Advisory
Agreements.

Certain of Capital’s and Investment’s portfolios of loan investments are held in their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries, Gladstone Business Loan, LLC (“Business
Loan”) in the case of Capital, and Gladstone Business Investment, LLC (“Business Investment”) in the case of Investment. Loan servicing fees represent additional
amounts earned by the Adviser Subsidiary for acting as the servicer pursuant to the terms of the line of credit agreements between Business Loan and its creditor banks
and Business Investment and its creditor banks. Since Capital and Investment own these loans indirectly (through their 100% ownership of Business Loan and Business
Investment, respectively), all loan-servicing fees earned by the Adviser Subsidiary are credited directly against the investment advisory fees otherwise due and payable to
the Adviser Subsidiary by Capital and Investment. Loan servicing fee revenue is recognized when it is earned, and any unpaid amounts are classified as accounts
receivable, related party. The Company had loan servicing fee receivables of $729,163 and $761,298 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Incentive Fees

Incentive fees are earned by the Adviser Subsidiary pursuant to a given Advisory Agreement when an Existing Gladstone Fund meets certain income or realized capital
gains thresholds. Refer to Note 6 for further details on the terms of the Advisory Agreements.

The Company does not record capital gains-based incentive fee income as earned until such capital gains are contractually due to the Adviser Subsidiary under the terms
of the respective Advisory Agreements with Commercial, Capital, Investment or Land. To the extent that receipt of capital gains-based incentive fees give rise to an
obligation under the Adviser Subsidiary’s Capital Gain Carried Interest Plan, the Company records compensation expense when this obligation becomes estimable and
probable.

Incentive fees are recognized as income when all contingencies, including realization of specified minimum hurdle rates, have been exceeded. Any calculated amounts
above the required minimum hurdle rates, as specified in the Advisory Agreements, is allocated by the Existing Gladstone Funds to the Adviser Subsidiary. The incentive
fees are not subject to reversal or clawback under the terms of the Advisory Agreements.

Any unpaid amounts are classified as accounts receivable, related party. The Company had income-based incentive fee receivables of $1,955,408 and $4,479,048 at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Administration Fees

The Administrator Subsidiary has entered into administrative agreements with each of the Existing Gladstone Funds and its other affiliates (each, an “Administrative
Agreement”), pursuant to which it furnishes such funds and other companies with accounting, valuation, legal, compliance, and other services. Pursuant to the
Administrative Agreements, the Existing Gladstone Funds and the Administrator Subsidiary’s other affiliates collectively pay the costs and expenses of the Administrator
Subsidiary to perform the administrative services, which are primarily rent and the salaries, benefits and expenses of the Administrator Subsidiary’s employees, including
the chief financial officer and treasurer, chief compliance officer, chief valuation officer, and general counsel and secretary (and the staffs of all of the foregoing) of each
of the Existing Gladstone Funds and the Administrator Subsidiary’s other affiliates.

Administration fee revenue is recognized when it is earned, and unpaid amounts are classified as accounts receivable, related party. Refer to Note 6 for details on the
administration fees earned. The Company had administration fee receivables of $2,709,246 and $1,252,659 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Investment Banking Fees

Investment banking fees include fees (1) received by the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary for providing investment banking and due diligence services to certain portfolio
companies of Capital and Investment, (2) received by the Adviser Subsidiary for providing management or advisory services to certain portfolio companies of Capital and
Investment and (3) received by the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary for providing mortgage placement services to Commercial and Land. Such fees may be received in advance
and, if so, are recorded as deferred revenue in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are refundable until earned. Due to uncertainty surrounding the collectibility of the
certain of these fees, they are recognized when they are collected. To the extent that the Adviser Subsidiary receives any fees directly from a portfolio company of either
Capital or Investment for any such services, 100% of such fees are credited against the investment advisory fees otherwise due to the Adviser Subsidiary pursuant to the
applicable Advisory Agreement.

Annual Review Fees

Annual review fee income, which is received by the Adviser Subsidiary from certain portfolio companies of Capital and Investment, includes amounts charged for
recurring portfolio review and valuation services. Amounts are generally payable to the Adviser Subsidiary quarterly or annually in advance, but due to uncertainty
surrounding the collectibility of the fees, they are recognized when they are collected, at which point they are deferred until they have been earned, generally over a
period of one year.

Property Management Fees

Property management fee income received by the Adviser Subsidiary includes amounts charged for recurring property management services provided to and paid by the
properties and tenants of Commercial. Generally, amounts are payable annually in arrears and are recognized as they are earned.

Securities Trade Commissions

Securities trade commission income includes dealer manager and broker-dealer commissions received by the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary pursuant to its role in distributing
certain shares of preferred stock of its affiliates through the independent broker-dealer network. Fees are generated and earned on a trade-date basis, when the Company’s
obligation to its customers is satisfied.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary entered into a Dealer Manager agreement with Land, effective January 10, 2018, to serve as exclusive dealer-manager in connection with
the primary offering of 6,000,000 shares of Land’s 6.0% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The offering terminated on March 5, 2020, which was the date
on which all the shares (6,000,000) offered in the primary offering had been sold. During the year ended June 30, 2020 the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary earned income of
$6,816,519 related to this agreement.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary entered into a Dealer Manager agreement with Land, effective February 20, 2020, to serve as exclusive dealer-manager in connection with
the primary offering of up to 20,000,000 shares of Land’s 6.0% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Land Series C Preferred Stock”), and up to
6,000,000 shares of the Land Series C Preferred Stock pursuant to a dividend reinvestment plan (“DRIP”). The offering of the Land Series C Preferred Stock will
terminate on the date that is the earlier of (1) June 1, 2025 (unless earlier terminated or extended by Land’s Board of Directors) and (2) the date on which all 20,000,000
shares of the Land Series C Preferred Stock offered in the primary offering are sold. The offering period for the DRIP will terminate on the earlier of (1) the issuance of all
6,000,000 shares of the Land Series C
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Preferred Stock under the DRIP and (2) the listing of the Land Series C Preferred Stock on the Nasdaq Global Market (“Nasdaq”) or another national securities exchange.
Through June 30, 2020, 130,702 of the 20,000,000 shares offered in the primary offering and none of the 6,000,000 shares offered pursuant to the DRIP had been sold.
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary earned $286,200 of income related to this agreement.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary entered into a Dealer Manager agreement with Commercial, effective February 20, 2020, to serve as exclusive dealer-manager on a
“reasonable best efforts” basis in connection with the primary offering of up to 20,000,000 shares of Commercial’s 6.0% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock
(the “Commercial Series F Preferred Stock™), and up to 6,000,000 shares of the Commercial Series F Preferred Stock pursuant to a DRIP. The terms of termination of the
offering are consistent with those of the Land Series C Preferred Stock described above. Through June 30, 2020, none of the 20,000,000 shares offered in the primary
offering and none of the 10,000,000 shares offered pursuant to the DRIP had been sold. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary earned $0 of
income related to this agreement.

The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary entered into a Dealer Manager agreement with Investment, effective May 22, 2020, to serve as exclusive dealer-manager in connection with
the primary offering of up to $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Investment’s 6.0% Notes due 2040 (the “Investment Notes”) on a “reasonable best efforts”
basis. Through June 30, 2020, none of the Investment Notes had been sold. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary earned $0 of income
related to this agreement.

Under each of the current dealer manager agreements, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary will provide certain sales, promotional and marketing services in connection with the
offerings, and the securities issuer will pay the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary (i) selling commissions of 6.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of the shares or notes in the
offerings and (ii) a dealer manager fee of 3.0% of the gross proceeds from sales of the shares or notes in the offerings (the “Dealer Manager Fee”). As the exclusive dealer
manager, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary has primary responsibility for marketing, soliciting, and distributing Land's and Commercial’s preferred stock and Investment’s
notes. The Broker-Dealer Subsidiary has control over the selection and use of third parties, such as participating dealers or wholesalers, in performing these services to the
securities issuers and has pricing discretion with these third parties. Therefore, the Broker-Dealer Subsidiary records both dealer manager revenues from the issuers and
the associated costs from participating dealers and wholesalers on a gross basis on the Company's statement of operations. Likewise, amounts due to and due from these
transactions are recorded gross on the Company's statement of financial position.

Fee Credits

Fee credits historically consist of non-contractual, unconditional and irrevocable waivers of loan servicing fees, investment advisory fees and incentive fees otherwise due
to the Adviser Subsidiary from the Existing Gladstone Funds under the Advisory Agreements. Such credits are either related to: (1) certain investment banking fees
received by the Adviser Subsidiary from portfolio companies of Capital and Investment, (2) loan servicing fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from Business Loan
and Business Investment, (3) a portion of the annual review fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from certain portfolio companies of Capital and Investment, (4) other
amounts granted to allow the Existing Gladstone Funds to comply with the requirements of their credit facilities or maintain the desired level of distributions to their
shareholders (see Note 6), and (5) a reduction in the investment advisory fees received in connection with syndicated loan investments held by Capital or Investment.
Revenues are presented net of any related fee credits; refer to Note 6 for a reconciliation of the elements of investment advisory and incentive fees.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method per Accounting Standards Codification 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). ASC 740 requires
the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and the tax basis of existing
assets and liabilities, measured at prevailing enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when these temporary differences are expected to affect taxable income. A
valuation allowance will be recognized if, based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. This
assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory
carry forward periods and the associated risk that operating loss carry-forwards may expire unused. The Company records interest and penalties to interest expense as
incurred.

The Company is also required to determine whether a tax position taken or expected to be taken is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax
amount recognized in the financial statements
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is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. The Gmpany
recognizes interest related to these positions in interest expense.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases: Amendments to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification” (“ASU 2016-02"). The new standard requires
lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase
of the leased asset by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease, respectively. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than 12 months
regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases today. The new standard
requires lessors to account for leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases and operating
leases. We adopted ASU 2016-02, as amended, as of July 1, 2019, which resulted in the recording of a right-of-use asset from the operating lease and an operating lease
liability of approximately $3.9 million for the lease related to the Company’s primary office space. We elected to combine the lease and non-lease components included in
the contract, which included operating expenses and taxes. We adopted the modified retrospective method, where we recorded the cumulative effect of applying the
guidance as of July 1, 2019. We also adopted the full suite of practical expedients provided under this guidance, whereby we are not reassessing whether a contract is or
contains a lease, the lease classification and the initial direct costs incurred upon onset of our leases. We have also adopted the hindsight practical expedient whereby we
can use hindsight to determine the lease term as of the date of implementation. We discounted the future lease payments using a discount rate of 5.2%, which is equivalent
to our incremental borrowing rate under our credit agreement as of the date of implementation, using a LIBOR rate expected over the term of the lease.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326), which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses of certain
financial instruments. The Company will adopt this ASU on July 1, 2020. Management is currently evaluating this ASU to determine its impact to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on
Financial Reporting” (“ASU 2020-04"). ASU 2020-04 provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepted accounting principles to contracts,
hedging relationships, and other transactions affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. ASU 2020-04 was effective immediately. The adoption of ASU
2020-04 did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Adviser Subsidiary and TGC INC maintain, as co-borrowers, a credit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., with a maturity date of January 15, 2021. Interest accrues
at LIBOR plus 3.0% and is payable monthly. Availability under the credit facility is $2,000,000. TGC INC serves as the guarantor of this credit facility and the Adviser
Subsidiary has granted the lender a security interest in its accounts receivable and certain other assets.

The credit facility contains various covenants, including a restriction on the payment of dividends without lender approval. The Adviser Subsidiary is required to maintain
net income after-tax of not less than one dollar calculated on a rolling four quarter basis. The Adviser Subsidiary was not in compliance with this covenant for the quarter
ended September 30, 2018, for which it obtained a waiver. The Adviser Subsidiary was in compliance with all covenants of the credit facility for the period from October
1, 2018 through June 30, 2020. No balances were outstanding under the credit facility as of June 30, 2020 or 2019.

Deferred Compensation Plan and Defined Contribution Plan

From October 2004 until January 2020, the Company maintained a Deferred Compensation Plan (known as the Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan). The Deferred
Compensation Plan was a nonqualified plan that permitted participants to defer all or a portion of their base salary and annual bonus. The Deferred Compensation Plan’s
assets were fair valued in accordance with ASC 820. The Deferred Compensation Plan’s obligations were unsecured general obligations of the Company to pay in the
future the value of the Deferred Compensation Plan accounts adjusted to reflect the hypothetical gains and losses resulting from the performance of the selected
investment benchmarks in accordance with the terms of the plan.

In October 2018, the Company terminated the Deferred Compensation Plan and ceased permitting participants to make further contributions into the plan.
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As of January 3, 2020, all remaining obligationswere valued, the trust was liquidated, and the obligations were paid to participants in a subsequent payroll. These
payments to participants will give rise to income tax deductions in the Company’s current tax return that were previously recognized as deferred tax assets.

Additionally, the Company sponsors a non-discriminatory defined contribution plan as a fringe benefit to all employees. The assets and associated liabilities of this plan
are assets and liabilities of such plan, and not assets and liabilities of the Company. The defined contribution plan allows participants to contribute as much as 75% of
their salaries up to the maximum amount allowed under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”). The defined contribution plan allows the
Company to make employer contributions, employer discretionary contributions, and safe harbor contributions. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
Company funded safe harbor contributions for calendar years 2019 and 2018 totaling $419,473 and $406,862, respectively. These amounts equaled 3% of each
participants’ salary, limited by the maximum contribution allowable per ERISA.

Income Taxes

The Company’s net income is taxed at regular corporate tax rates for both United States Federal and state purposes. The United States Federal corporate tax rate for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was 21%.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Deferred Tax Assets
Accrued compensation $ 259,751 $ 2,401,023
Other 60,994 26,541
Total deferred tax assets 320,745 2,427,564
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Unrealized gain on marketable securities — (27,245)
Total deferred tax liabilities — (27,245)
Net deferred tax assets $ 320,745 $ 2,400,319

The Company believes it is more likely than not it will generate sufficient taxable income in future periods to realize the deferred tax assets.

The income tax provision consists of the following for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Current
Federal $ (55,044) $ (1,281,020)
State (11,706) (361,094)
Total current (66,750) (1,642,114)
Deferred
Federal (1,628,613) 119,297
State (450,960) 33,176
Total deferred (2,079,573) 152,473
Income tax provision $ (2,146,323) § (1,489,641)

F-13



Income tax expense from operations differs from taxes computed using the21% United States Federal statutory tax ratedue primarily to state taxes for the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 as follows:

Federal tax expense, at statutory rate
State income tax expense, net of federal benefit

Deferred tax impacts of TCJA
Non-deductible expenses
State rate changes

Other, net

Income tax provision

2020 2019
$  (1,711,142) $  (1,226,886)
(410,947) (259,095)
(26,190) (12,316)
— 87
1,956 8,569
$  (2,146323) $  (1,489,641)

The Company evaluated the tax positions taken on Federal and state tax returns for all open tax years (June 30, 2016—June 30, 2020) and determined that no uncertain

tax position liability exists as of June 30, 2020 or 2019.

6. Related Party Transactions

The following tables list the investment advisory and loan servicing fees, incentive fees, and irrevocable, unconditional, and non-contractual fee waivers granted by the
Adviser Subsidiary to the Existing Gladstone Funds, as further described below:

Revenue — Investment Advisory and Loan Servicing Fees

2020
Base management fees
Loan servicing fees
Loan servicing fee credit
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans
Investment advisory and loan servicing fee, net

2019
Base management fees
Loan servicing fees
Loan servicing fee credit
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans
Investment advisory and loan servicing fee, net

Revenue — Incentive Fees

2020
Incentive fees
Incentive fee waiver
Incentive fee, net

2019
Incentive fees
Incentive fee waiver
Incentive fee, net

Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
7,381,423 § 11,830,794 $§ 5415101 § 3,824,734 § 28,452,052
5,018,789 6,815,731 — — 12,434,520

(5,618,789) (6,815,731) - — (12,434,520)

(1,693,938) (3,948,383) — — (5,642,321)

(446,115) — — — (446,115)
5,241,370 $§ 7,882,411 § 5415101 § 3,824,734 § 22,363,616

Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
7,195,097 $ 12,812,329 $§ 5,058,535 $ 3,308,478 § 28,374,439
5,050,967 6,839,215 — — 11,890,182

(5,050,967) (6,839,215) — — (11,890,182)

(1,187,838) (5,770,917) — (1,648,381) (8,607,136)

(378,827) — — — (378.,827)
5,628432 § 7,041,412 $§ 5,058,535 $ 1,660,097 § 19,388,476

Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
5385470 $ 10,386,635 $§ 4,106361 § 2,180,570 $ 22,059,036

(3,323,662) — — — (3,323,662)
2,061,808 $ 10,386,635 $ 4,106,361 $ 2,180,570 § 18,735,374

Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
5,549,080 $§ 5420850 $§ 3367474 § 628,098 $§ 14,965,502

(1,922,745) — — (778,077) (2,700,822)
3,626,335 $§ 5,420,850 $ 3367474 $ (149,979) $§ 12,264,680
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Credits to Investment Advisory and Loan Servicing Fees and Incentive Fees

2020 Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers $  (1,693,938) § (3,948383) § — 8 — $ (5,642,321)
Loan servicing fee credit (5,618,789) (6,815,731) — — (12,434,520)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (446,115) — — — (446,115)
Incentive fee waiver (3,323,662) — — — (3,323,662)
Total credits $ (11,082,504) § (10,764,114) § — — § (21,846,618)
2019 Capital Investment Commercial Land Total
Credit for fees received from portfolio companies and
other fee waivers $ (1,187.838) § (5,770917) § — $ (1,648381) $ (8,607,136)
Loan servicing fee credit (5,050,967) (6,839,215) — — $ (11,890,182)
Fee reduction on senior syndicated loans (378,827) — — — S (378,827)
Incentive fee waiver (1,922,745) — — (778,077) $  (2,700,822)
Total credits $  (8,540,377) $ (12,610,132) § — § (2426458) $ (23,576,967)

The Adviser Subsidiary has entered into an Advisory Agreement with each of the Existing Gladstone Funds.

Through December 31, 2019, the Advisory Agreement with Land provided for (1) an annual base management fee equal to 2% of the Land’s total adjusted stockholders’
equity and (2) an income-based quarterly incentive fee which would be earned if Land’s pre-incentive fee FFO exceeded on a quarterly basis 1.75% of total adjusted
stockholder’s equity. The Adviser Subsidiary was entitled to receive 100% of the amount of the pre-incentive fee FFO that exceeded the hurdle rate but was less than
2.1875% of Land’s pre-incentive fee FFO in any calendar quarter. The Adviser Subsidiary was also entitled to receive an incentive fee equal to 20% of the amount of
Land’s pre-incentive fee FFO that exceeded 2.1875% in any calendar quarter. Additionally, the Adviser Subsidiary was entitled to receive an annual capital gains-based
incentive fee from Land equal to 15% of certain net capital gains realized by Land. Effective January 1, 2020, the Advisory Agreement with Land was amended to
provide for (1) an annual base management fee equal to 0.50% (0.125% per quarter) of the prior calendar quarter’s “Gross Tangible Real Estate” (as defined in the
agreement); (2) an income-based quarterly incentive fee which would be earned if Land’s pre-incentive fee FFO exceeded on a quarterly basis 1.75% of the current
calendar quarter’s “Total Adjusted Common Equity” (as defined in the agreement), and (3) an annual capital gains-based incentive fee equal to 15% of certain net capital
gains realized by Land. No capital gains incentive fees were earned from Land for the year ended June 30, 2020. In fiscal year 2019, a capital gains fee was earned from
Land, but was fully credited back, resulting in no net revenue.

Through June 30, 2020, the Advisory Agreement with Commercial provided for (1) an annual base management fee equal to 1.5% of Commercial’s total adjusted
stockholders’ equity and (2) an income-based quarterly incentive fee which would be earned if Commercial’s pre-incentive fee core FFO exceeded 2% of Commercial’s
total adjusted stockholder’s equity. In the event that the calculation of the income-based quarterly incentive fee yielded an incentive fee for a particular quarter that
exceeded by greater than 15% the average quarterly incentive fee paid during the trailing four quarters (averaged over the number of quarters any incentive fee was paid),
then such incentive fee would equal 15% of such trailing average quarterly incentive fee. Additionally, the Adviser Subsidiary was entitled to receive an annual capital
gains-based incentive fee from Commercial equal to 15% of certain net capital gains realized by Commercial. No capital gains incentive fees were earned from
Commercial for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Refer to Note 9 for a description of changes to the base management portion of the Advisory Agreement that
occurred subsequent to June 30, 2020.

The Adviser Subsidiary has also entered into separate Advisory Agreements with each of Capital and Investment (collectively the “BDCs”). The Advisory Agreements
provide for an annual base management fee equal to 2%, in the case of Investment, and 1.75%, in the case of Capital, of the respective BDC’s average gross assets, which
is defined as total assets less uninvested cash and cash equivalents resulting from borrowings calculated as of the end of the two most recently completed quarters and
appropriately adjusted for any share issuances or repurchases during the applicable calendar quarter.

The Adviser Subsidiary also services the loans held by the BDCs. All loan servicing fees paid to the Adviser Subsidiary are treated as reductions directly against the
investment advisory fees under the Advisory Agreements. The Adviser Subsidiary’s board of directors voluntarily provide non-contractual, unconditional and irrevocable
credits to reduce the loan servicing fee rate on syndicated loan participations to 0.5% for each of the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. In addition, the investment
advisory fee is credited by 100% of certain management service and other fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from the BDCs’ portfolio companies and a further
variable amount of annual review fees received by the Adviser Subsidiary from certain
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of the BDCs’ portfolio companies. Overall, the investment advisory fee due to the Adviser Subsidiary cannot exceed 2% of total assets (as reduced by cash and cash
equivalents pledged to creditors) during any given fiscal year.

The Advisory Agreements with the BDCs also include an income based quarterly incentive fee which the Adviser Subsidiary will be entitled to receive if either of the
BDCs’ quarterly net investment income (before giving effect to the incentive fee) exceeds a threshold. For Investment, the Adviser Subsidiary is entitled to 100% of net
investment income above a threshold of 1.75% of net assets up to a threshold of 2.1875% of net assets and 20% of the net investment income in excess of such 2.1875%
threshold. For Capital, the threshold was the same as Investment for the periods from July 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020. On April 14, 2020, Capital amended and
restated its existing Advisory Agreement with the Advisory Subsidiary to change the calculation of the incentive fee. The Amended Agreement revised the “hurdle rate”
included in the calculation of the Incentive Fee for the period beginning April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021, increasing the hurdle rate from 1.75% per quarter (7%
annualized) to 2.00% per quarter (8% annualized) and increasing the excess Incentive Fee hurdle rate from 2.1875% per quarter (8.75% annualized) to 2.4375% per
quarter (9.75% annualized). The calculation of the other fees in the Advisory Agreement remain unchanged. The revised Incentive Fee calculation began with the fee
calculations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020.

The Advisory Agreements also provide for an annual capital gains based incentive fee, in which the Adviser Subsidiary will be entitled to receive an annual fee equal to
20% of certain of the BDCs’ realized capital gains, net of realized capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation at the end of the applicable year.

Many of Capital’s loan investments are held directly by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Business Loan. Likewise, many of Investment’s loan investments are held directly
by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Business Investment. Business Loan and Business Investment pay the Adviser Subsidiary a loan servicing fee of 1.5% and 2.0%,
respectively, per annum, on a monthly basis, on the fair value of the loans directly held thereby. Loan servicing fees represent amounts earned by the Adviser Subsidiary
for acting as the servicer pursuant to the terms of the line of credit agreements between Business Loan and its creditor banks and Business Investment and its creditor
banks. Since Capital and Investment own these loans (through their 100% ownership of Business Loan and Business Investment, respectively), all loan-servicing fees
earned by the Adviser Subsidiary are credited directly against the investment advisory fees otherwise due and payable to the Adviser Subsidiary by Capital and
Investment. Loan servicing fee revenue is recognized when earned and unpaid amounts are classified as accounts receivable, related party.

The table below lists the servicing fees earned by the Adviser Subsidiary for servicing Capital’s (thus, Business Loan’s) and Investment’s (thus, Business Investment’s)
loan portfolios for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Portfolio: 2020 2019
Business Loan (Capital) $ 5,618,789 $ 5,050,967
Business Investment (Investment) 6,815,731 6,839,215

Total loan servicing fees $ 12,434,520 $ 11,890,182

The following table lists the administration fees earned from the Existing Gladstone Funds and three of its unconsolidated affiliates (David and Lorna Gladstone
Foundation, Gladstone International Corporation and The Gladstone Companies, Ltd.) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively:

Administration Agreement with: 2020 2019
Capital $ 1,439,586 $ 1,275,928
Commercial 1,627,138 1,633,054
Investment 1,681,711 1,333,870
Land 1,382,576 1,234,962
Gladstone Foundation 12,933 24,498
Gladstone International 8,857 13,885
The Gladstone Companies, Ltd. 9,868 —

Total administration fees $ 6,162,669 $ 5,516,197
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Calculation of Net Income per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share of common shares for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 using the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the periods in accordance with ASC 260-10.

2020 2019
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 6,109,748 $ 4,352,675
Denominator for average shares of common shares
outstanding -- basic and diluted 100 100
Net income per share attributable to common shares
-- basic and diluted $ 61,097.48 § 43,526.75

Commitments and Contingencies

The Adviser Subsidiary rents office space in multiple locations throughout the United States and has entered into operating leases for its office spaces. These rental lease
agreements are generally subject to escalation provisions on base rental payments, as well as certain costs incurred by the property owners. On April 15, 2005, the Adviser
Subsidiary entered into an operating lease agreement to lease the office space in McLean, Virginia. The most recent amendment, dated January 18, 2019, extended the
lease expiration date to April 30, 2025. This lease is cancellable by the Adviser Subsidiary upon providing the property owner with three months” written notice.

The following table summarizes the future lease payments due under cancellable operating leases by fiscal year:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

2021 $ 745,509
2022 766,975
2023 784,936
2024 808,596
2025 690,632
Total contractual repayments 3,796,648
Imputed interest (479,735)
Operating lease liability $ 3,316,913

The remaining lease term is five years and the weighted average discount rate used in determining the operating lease liability is 5.2%.

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2020 through September 28, 2020, the date these financial statements were available for
issuance.

Effective July 1, 2020, the Adviser Subsidiary amended its Advisory Agreement with Commercial to make the annual base management fee equal to 0.425% (0.10625%
per quarter) of the quarter’s average “Gross Tangible Real Estate” (as defined in the agreement). The annual income-based and capital gains-based incentive fees were not
amended.

On September 8, 2020, the Company’s offering statement for its Tier 2, Regulation A offering (the “Bond Offering”) of $50 million of 7.0% Senior Secured Bonds which
will mature on September 30, 2025 (the “Bonds”) was qualified by the SEC. The Bonds will bear interest at a rate equal to 7.0% per year payable to the record holders of
the Bonds monthly in arrears on the first day of each month. The Bonds will be secured by a senior blanket lien on the equity interest we hold in new funds launched and
managed through the Adviser Subsidiary which are raised with the proceeds of the Bond Offering. The Bond Offering will terminate on the date that is the earlier of (1)
September 30, 2023 (unless earlier terminated or extended by our Board of Directors) and (2) the date on which all $50,000,000 of the Bonds offered pursuant to the Bond
Offering are sold. We may redeem the Bonds in whole or in part at any time or from time to time on or after September 30, 2023 (or at any time, if our Board of Directors
determines, in its sole discretion, that the proceeds of the Bond Offering are insufficient for the intended use of proceeds) at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus any accrued, but unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. Bondholders will have no right to require us to
redeem any of the Bonds prior to their maturity date except in the case of a holder’s death, subject to certain notice and other requirements, at a
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redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bond to be redeemed, plus any accrued, but unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date.The
Bonds will not be listed on a registered national securities exchange. Assuming the sale of all of theBonds, the net proceeds, after selling commissions and dealer
manager fees, would be approximately $45.5 million. As of the date of this Annual Report, none of the bonds had been sold and there have been no proceeds generated.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, this Annual Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the issuer and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, this Annual Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the issuer and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Michael Malesardi

Michael Malesardi
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer)

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Terry Brubaker

Terry Brubaker
Director

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Michael LiCalsi

Michael LiCalsi
Director
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Exhibit_6.12
Expense Sharing Agreement

This Expense Sharing Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of September 11, 2020, by and between The Gladstone
Companies, Ltd., a Cayman Islands Exempted Company (“Limited”); The Gladstone Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Inc.”); and
Gladstone Management Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“GMC”).

WHEREAS Limited is the 100% owner of Inc. and Inc. is the 100% owner of GMC,;
WHEREAS, Limited and Inc. do not directly employee personnel;

WHEREAS, all personnel of the Gladstone family of affiliated companies are employed by either GMC or Gladstone
Administration, LLC (“Administration”); and

WHEREAS, each of Limited and Inc. have entered into separate administration agreements with Administration, whereby
Administration provides administrative services to each of Limited and Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1.  GMC may provide certain personnel services to Limited or Inc., for which Limited or Inc. shall reimburse GMC for all such
services and expenses incurred in connection therewith and shall reflect all of the liabilities expenses related thereto on its books
and records. Accordingly, all expenses related to services provided to Limited or Inc. by GMC, and all expenses paid for Limited
or Inc. by GMC, shall be allocated to Limited or Inc. by GMC, as applicable, monthly on a reasonable basis that attempts to
equate the proportional cost of the service or product to the proportional use of or benefit derived from the service or
product. Expenses that may be allocated, and services that may be provided, include the following:

a)  Administrative expenses;

b) Communications expenses;

c) Information technology and computer expenses, including but not limited to, computer hardware, computer software,
coordination of market data and telecommunications services and equipment, repairs and maintenance of all technological
services and equipment and any other technological needs as may be requested,

d)  Personnel expenses, including administration of employee benefit plans;

e)  Professional fees and expenses;

f)  Travel and business development;

g)  Any other reasonable services agreed to by the Parties;

2. The form of the monthly allocation for GMC is attached hereto as Exhibit A. GMC shall provide Limited or Inc. with copies of:
(1) the expense allocation methodology; and (ii) invoices paid by GMC on behalf of Limited or Inc.

3. This Agreement shall remain in force and effect until terminated by any Party upon providing thirty (30) days written notice to the
non-terminating Parties.

[The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally. Signature page follows.]

Expense Sharing Agreement (Limited, Inc., and GMC) 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first listed above.
THE GLADSTONE COMPANIES, LTD.

By: /s/ David Gladstone
David Gladstone, Chief Executive Officer

THE GLADSTONE COMPANIES, INC.

By: /s/ David Gladstone
David Gladstone, Chief Executive Officer

GLADSTONE MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ David Gladstone
David Gladstone, Chief Executive Officer

Expense Sharing Agreement (Limited, Inc., and GMC) 2



Exhibit A
GLADSTONE MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
Form of Allocation of Monthly Expenses and Costs

(a) Generally. In full consideration of the provision of the services by GMC, Limited or Inc. shall reimburse GMC for the costs and
expenses incurred by GMC in performing its obligations and providing personnel services and facilities hereunder.

(b) Payroll Costs. Limited or Inc. shall reimburse GMC for their pro rata portion of the payroll and related benefits (including tax
withholding) (collectively, “Payroll Costs”) for each of GMC’s employees who provide services to Limited or Inc. This amount shall be
computed on a monthly basis for each employee as the ratio of the hours spent on behalf of Limited or Inc. to the total hours worked by the
employee applied to the employee's payroll and related benefits for that month.

(c) Overhead Costs. Limited or Inc. shall reimburse GMC for its pro rata portion of GMC'’s total operating expenses, if any, not
incurred for direct benefit of any party to whom GMC provides investment advisory services, including, but not limited to rent, telephone, IT
services, and general office expenses (hereinafter, collectively, “Overhead Costs™).

(d) Direct Expenses. Limited or Inc. shall reimburse GMC for the direct expenses, if any, incurred by GMC on behalf of Limited or
Inc., including, but not limited to, those relating to: organization; preparing financial statements; fees and expenses incurred by GMC payable
to third parties, including agents, consultants or other advisors in monitoring financial and legal affairs for Limited or Inc.’s allocable portion of
directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance and any other insurance premiums; outside legal costs; and all other similar
expenses (all such expenses hereinafter collectively referred to as “Direct Expenses”).

(e) Calculation of Monthly Total Costs. Limited or Inc.’s reimbursement of GMC for Payroll Costs, Overhead Costs, and Direct
Expenses (hereinafter collectively referred to herein as “Total Costs™) shall be computed by GMC monthly on the following basis:

. Payroll Costs. The total aggregate hours of service performed by all of GMC’s employees during the month shall be the
"Denominator." The total aggregate hours of service performed by all of GMC’s employees on behalf of Limited or Inc.
during the month shall be the "Numerator." The percentage derived by dividing the Numerator by the Denominator shall
be the percentage of all Payroll Costs that shall be billed to Limited or Inc. for that month (the “Monthly Percentage”).

ii.  Overhead Costs. GMC will multiply its actual monthly Overhead Costs by the Monthly Percentage. The result of such
calculation will yield the total Overhead Costs allocable to Limited or Inc.

iii.  Direct Expenses. GMC will bill the aggregate Direct Expenses in their entirety to Limited or Inc.

®) Billing and Payment. GMC shall bill Limited or Inc. for the Total Costs by the 5th business day of the subsequent month. Limited
or Inc., shall, in turn, remit payment to GMC for the Total Costs not later than five business days after it receives the previous month’s bill.
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Exhibit 8.1
SUBSCRIPTION ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS SUBSCRIPTION ESCROW AGREEMENT dated as of September 9, 2020 (this “Agreement”), is entered into between The
Gladstone Companies, Inc. (the “Company””) and UMB Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as escrow agent (the
“Escrow Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Company intends to raise cash funds from Investors (as defined below) pursuant to a public offering (the
“Offering”) of up to $50,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Company’s 7.00% senior secured bonds due 2025 at $25.00 per bond (the
“Securities’), pursuant to the offering statement on Form 1-A of the Company (as amended from time to time, the “Offering Document”™).

WHEREAS, the Escrow Agent is willing to accept appointment as escrow agent only for the express duties set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties
hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. Proceeds to be Escrowed. On or before the date the Offering Document is declared qualified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, subject to the Escrow Agent’s prior receipt of all required documentation necessary to comply with the Bank Secrecy Act, the
Company shall establish an escrow account with the Escrow Agent to be invested in accordance with Section 7 entitled “ESCROW
ACCOUNT FOR THE BENEFIT OF INVESTORS OF BONDS OF THE GLADSTONE COMPANIES, INC.” (including such abbreviations
as are required for the Escrow Agent’s systems) (the “Escrow Account”). All checks, wire transfers and other funds received from subscribers
of Securities via “Direct Registration Settlement” (as described in the Offering Document) (“Investors”) in payment for the Securities
(“Investor Funds) will be delivered to the Escrow Agent within one business day following the day upon which such Investor Funds are
received by the Company or its agents, and shall, upon receipt by the Escrow Agent, be retained in escrow by the Escrow Agent. During the
term of this Agreement, the Company or its agents shall cause all checks received by and made payable to it for payment for the Securities to
be endorsed in favor of the Escrow Agent and delivered to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Escrow Account.

The initial escrow period shall commence upon the effectiveness of this Agreement and shall continue until the Termination Date (as
defined in Section 4). The Escrow Account shall not be an interest-bearing account.

The Escrow Agent shall have no duty to make any disbursement, investment or other use of Investor Funds until and unless it has
good and collected funds. If any checks deposited in the Escrow Account are returned or prove uncollectible after the funds represented
thereby have been released by the Escrow Agent, then the Company shall promptly reimburse the Escrow Agent for any and all costs incurred
for such, upon request, and the Escrow Agent shall deliver the returned checks to the Company. The Escrow Agent shall be under no duty or
responsibility to enforce collection of any check delivered to it hereunder.

2. Investors. Investors will be instructed by the dealer manager for the Offering, Gladstone Securities, LLC (the “Dealer Manager”) or
any soliciting dealers retained by the Dealer Manager (the “Soliciting Dealers”) to remit the purchase price in the form of checks (“instruments
of payment”) payable to the order of, or funds wired in favor of, “UMB BANK, N.A., ESCROW AGENT FOR THE GLADSTONE
COMPANIES, INC.” Any checks made payable to a party other than the Escrow Agent shall be sent to the Company or returned to the
Soliciting Dealer that submitted the check.

If any subscription agreement for the purchase of Securities solicited by a Soliciting Dealer is rejected by the Company, then the
subscription agreement and check for the purchase of Securities will be returned to the rejected subscriber within ten business days from the
date of rejection. The Company shall provide any



necessary documentation to the Escrow Agent as the Escrow Agent may request, upon which it may rely, to enable the Escrow Agent to return
amounts to rejected subscribers.

All Investor Funds deposited in the Escrow Account shall not be subject to any liens or charges by the Company or the Escrow Agent,
or judgments or creditors’ claims against the Company, until and unless released to the Company as hereinafter provided. The Company
understands and agrees that the Company shall not be entitled to any Investor Funds on deposit in the Escrow Account and no such funds shall
become the property of the Company, or any other entity except as released to the Company pursuant to Section 3. The Escrow Agent will not
use the information provided to it by the Company for any purpose other than to fulfill its obligations as Escrow Agent hereunder. The Escrow
Agent will treat all Investor information as confidential; provided the Escrow Agent may disclose Investor information to the extent required to
a supervisory or governmental authority or a self-regulatory organization in the course of any examination, inquiry, or audit of the Escrow
Agent or any of its representatives or businesses or as otherwise required by law; provided further, the Escrow Agent shall, to the extent
permitted by law, promptly notify the Company of the existence, terms and circumstances surrounding such disclosure request, so that the
Company may seek an appropriate protective order or other remedy, at its sole expense.

3. Disbursement of Funds. The Escrow Agent, upon receipt of Escrow Release Notice, attached hereto as Exhibit C, shall periodically
transfer any portion of the Investor Funds to the Company or such other parties as set forth in the applicable Escrow Release Notice. The
Escrow Agent shall effect such transfer by the close of business on the date the Escrow Agent receives the applicable Escrow Release Notice;
provided, however, if the Escrow Agent receives the applicable Escrow Release Notice after 2:00 pm Central Time, then the Escrow Agent
shall effect such transfer by the close of business on the next succeeding business day. If the Escrow Agent has not previously received an
Escrow Release Notice by the Termination Date, the Escrow Agent shall return any Investor Funds held to the Investors. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, except for a return of Investor Funds to the applicable Investor, the Escrow Agent shall not transfer Investor Funds to any party until
after it has received an executed and valid IRS Form W-9, or valid substitute thereto, from such party.

4. Term of Escrow. The “Termination Date” shall be the earliest of: (a) all funds held in the Escrow Account are distributed to the
Company or to Investors pursuant to Section 3 and the Company has informed the Escrow Agent in writing to close the Escrow Account; (b) the date
the Escrow Agent receives written notice from the Company that it is abandoning the sale of the Securities; and (c) the date the Escrow Agent receives
written notice from the Securities and Exchange Commission or any other federal or state regulatory authority that a stop or similar order has been issued
with respect to the Offering Document and has remained in effect for at least 20 days. After the Termination Date, the Company and its agents shall not
deposit, and the Escrow Agent shall not accept, any additional amounts representing payments by prospective Investors.

5. Duty and Liability of the Escrow Agent. The sole duty of the Escrow Agent shall be to receive Investor Funds and subscription
agreements and hold them subject to release, in accordance herewith, and the Escrow Agent shall be under no duty to determine whether the
Company, the Dealer Manager or any Soliciting Dealer is complying with requirements of this Agreement, the Offering or applicable securities
or other laws in tendering the Investor Funds to the Escrow Agent. No other agreement entered into between the parties, or any of them, shall
be considered as adopted or binding, in whole or in part, upon the Escrow Agent notwithstanding that any such other agreement may be
referred to herein or deposited with the Escrow Agent or the Escrow Agent may have knowledge thereof, including specifically but without
limitation the Offering Document or any other document related to the Offering (including the subscription agreement and exhibits thereto),
and the Escrow Agent’s rights and responsibilities shall be governed solely by this Agreement. The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for
or be required to enforce any of the terms or conditions of the Offering Document or any other document related to the Offering (including the
subscription agreement and exhibits thereto) or other agreement between the Company and any other party. The Escrow Agent may
conclusively rely upon and shall



be protected in acting upon any statement, certificate, notice, request, consent, order or other document believed by it to be genuine and to have
been signed or presented by the proper party or parties. The Escrow Agent shall have no duty or liability to verify any such statement,
certificate, notice, request, consent, order or other document, and its sole responsibility shall be to act only as expressly set forth in this
Agreement. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the Escrow Agent an authorized signers form in the
form of Exhibit A or Exhibit A-1 to this Agreement, as applicable. The Escrow Agent shall be under no obligation to institute or defend any
action, suit or proceeding in connection with this Agreement unless first indemnified to its satisfaction. The Escrow Agent may consult counsel
of its own choice with respect to any question arising under this Agreement and the Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or
omitted in good faith upon advice of such counsel. The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith
except to the extent that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the Escrow Agent’s gross negligence or willful misconduct was the
primary cause of loss. The Escrow Agent is acting solely as escrow agent hereunder and owes no duties, covenants or obligations, fiduciary or
otherwise, to any other person by reason of this Agreement, except as otherwise stated herein, and no implied duties, covenants or obligations,
fiduciary or otherwise, shall be read into this Agreement against the Escrow Agent. If any disagreement between any of the parties to this
Agreement, or between any of them and any other person, including any Investor, resulting in adverse claims or demands being made in
connection with the matters covered by this Agreement, or if the Escrow Agent is in doubt as to what action it should take hereunder, the
Escrow Agent may, at its option, refuse to comply with any claims or demands on it, or refuse to take any other action hereunder, so long as
such disagreement continues or such doubt exists, and in any such event, the Escrow Agent shall not be or become liable in any way or to any
person for its failure or refusal to act, and the Escrow Agent shall be entitled to continue so to refrain from acting until (a) the rights of all interested
parties shall have been fully and finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (b) all differences shall have been adjudged and all doubt
resolved by agreement among all of the interested persons, and the Escrow Agent shall have been notified thereof in writing signed by all such persons.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Escrow Agent may in its discretion obey the order, judgment, decree or levy of any court, whether with or
without jurisdiction and the Escrow Agent is hereby authorized in its sole discretion to comply with and obey any such orders, judgments,
decrees or levies. If any controversy should arise with respect to this Agreement the Escrow Agent shall have the right, at its option, to institute
an interpleader action in any court of competent jurisdiction to determine the rights of the parties. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE ESCROW
AGENT BE LIABLE, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSSES OR DAMAGES
OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION LOST PROFITS), EVEN IF THE ESCROW AGENT HAS
BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES AND REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION. The
parties hereto agree that the Escrow Agent has no role in the preparation of the Offering Document (including the subscription agreement and
other exhibits thereto) and makes no representations or warranties with respect to the information contained therein or omitted therefrom. The
Escrow Agent shall have no obligation, duty or liability with respect to compliance with any federal or state securities, disclosure or tax laws
concerning the Offering Document or any other document related to the Offering (including the subscription agreement and other exhibits
thereto) or the issuance, offering or sale of the Securities. The Escrow Agent shall have no duty or obligation to monitor the application and use
of the Investor Funds once transferred to the Company, that being the sole obligation and responsibility of the Company.

6. Escrow Agent’s Fee. The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to compensation for its services as stated in the fee schedule attached
hereto as Exhibit B, which compensation shall be paid by the Company. The fee agreed upon for the services rendered hereunder is intended as
full compensation for the Escrow Agent’s services as contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that if (a) the conditions for the
disbursement of funds under this Agreement are not fulfilled, (b) the Escrow Agent renders any material service not contemplated in this
Agreement, (c) there is any assignment of interest in the subject matter of this Agreement, (d)



there is any material modification hereof, (¢) any material controversy arises hereunder, or (f) the Escrow Agent is made a party to any litigation
pertaining to this Agreement or the subject matter hereof, then the Escrow Agent shall be reasonably compensated for such extraordinary services and
reimbursed for all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, occasioned by any delay, controversy, litigation or event, and the same shall
be recoverable from the Company. The Company’s obligations under this Section 6 shall survive the resignation or removal of the Escrow Agent and the
assignment or termination of this Agreement.

7. Investment of Investor Funds. Investor Funds shall be deposited in the Escrow Account in accordance with Section 1 and held un-
invested in the Escrow Account, which shall be non-interest bearing.

8. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been duly given (a) on the date of service if served personally on the party to whom notice is to be given, (b) on the day of transmission if
sent by facsimile/email transmission bearing an authorized signature to the facsimile number/email address given below, and written confirmation of
receipt is obtained promptly after completion of transmission, (c) on the day after delivery to Federal Express or similar overnight courier or the Express
Mail service maintained by the United States Postal Service, or (d) on the fifth day after mailing, if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by
first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, and properly addressed, return receipt requested, to the party as follows:

If to the Company:

Michael Malesardi

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer The Gladstone Companies, Inc.
1521 Westbranch Drive

McLean, VA 22102

If to Escrow Agent:

UMB Bank, National Association 928 Grand Blvd. 12 Floor Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Attention: Lara Stevens, Corporate Trust & Escrow Services Dept. Telephone: (816) 860-3017
Fax: (816) 860-3029

Email: lara.stevens@umb.com

Any party may change its address for purposes of this Section by giving the other party written notice of the new address in the manner set
forth above.

9. Indemnification of Escrow Agent. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Escrow Agent from and
against, any and all losses, liabilities, costs, damages and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable counsel fees and expenses, which
the Escrow Agent may suffer or incur by reason of any action, claim or proceeding brought against the Escrow Agent arising out of or relating
in any way to this Agreement or any transaction to which this Agreement relates unless such loss, liability, cost, damage or expense is finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been primarily caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow
Agent. The terms of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the resignation or removal of the Escrow Agent.

10. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no party hereto shall assign this Agreement or any rights
or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto and any such attempted assignment without such prior
written consent shall be void and of no force and effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors
and permitted assigns of the parties hereto. Any corporation or association into which the Escrow Agent may be converted or



merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business and assets
as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to
which the Escrow Agent is a party, shall be and become the successor Escrow Agent under this Agreement and shall have and succeed to the rights,
powers, duties, immunities and privileges as its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or paper or the performance of any further
act.

11. Governing Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be construed, performed, and enforced in accordance with, and governed by,
the internal laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof.

12. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared by any court or other judicial or administrative body to be null, void, or
unenforceable, said provision shall survive to the extent it is not so declared, and all of the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

13. Amendments; Waivers. This Agreement may be amended or modified, and any of the terms, covenants, representations,
warranties, or conditions hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument executed by the parties hereto, or in the case of a waiver, by the
party waiving compliance. Any waiver by any party of any condition, or of the breach of any provision, term, covenant, representation, or
warranty contained in this Agreement, in any one or more instances, shall not be deemed to be nor construed as further or continuing waiver of
any such condition, or of the breach of any other provision, term, covenant, representation, or warranty of this Agreement. The Company
agrees that any requested waiver, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be consistent with the terms of the Offering.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding among the parties hereto with respect to the
escrow contemplated hereby and supersedes and replaces all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral or written, with
regard to such escrow.

15. Section Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed (including by facsimile transmission) with counterpart signature pages or in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute the same instrument. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles,
electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original
documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law. The parties hereto agree that the
transactions described herein may be conducted and related documents may be stored by electronic means.

17. Resignation. The Escrow Agent may resign upon 30 days’ advance written notice to the parties hereto. If a successor escrow agent
is not appointed by the Company within the 30-day period following such notice, the Escrow Agent may petition any court of competent
jurisdiction to name a successor escrow agent, or may interplead the Investor Funds with such court, whereupon the Escrow Agent’s duties
hereunder shall terminate.

18. References to Escrow Agent. Other than the Offering Document, any of the other documents related to the Offering (including the
subscription agreement and exhibits thereto) and any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, no printed or other matter in any language
(including, without limitation, notices, reports and promotional material) which mentions the Escrow Agent’s name or the rights, powers, or
duties of the Escrow Agent shall be issued by the Company or the Dealer Manager, or on the Company’s or the Dealer Manager’s behalf,
unless the Escrow Agent shall first have given its specific written consent thereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any amendment or
supplement to the Offering Document or any other document related to the Offering (including the subscription agreement and exhibits
thereto) that revises, alters, modifies,



changes or adds to the description of the Escrow Agent or its rights, powers or duties hereunder shall not be issued by the Company or the
Dealer Manager, or on the Company’s or the Dealer Manager’s behalf, unless the Escrow Agent has first given specific written consent
thereto.

19. Patriot Act and Bank Secrecy Act Compliance. The Company and the Dealer Manager shall provide to the Escrow Agent upon
the execution of this Agreement any documentation requested and any information reasonably requested by the Escrow Agent to comply with
the USA Patriot Act of 2001, as amended from time to time or the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended from time to time.

[Signature page follows.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the date and year first set forth above.
COMPANY
By: /s/ David Gladstone

Name: David J. Gladstone
Title: Chairman, President and CEO

UMB BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, as Escrow Agent

By: /s/ Lara L. Stevens
Name: Lara L. Stevens
Title: Vice President




Exhibit A
CERTIFICATE AS TO AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES

The specimen signatures shown below are the specimen signatures of the individuals who have been designated as Authorized Representatives
of The Gladstone Companies, Inc. and are authorized to initiate and approve transactions of all types for the above-mentioned account.

Name/Title Specimen Signature

David Gladstone, Chairman, President and CEO

Signature
Michael Malesardi, CFO and Treasurer

Signature
Terry Brubaker, Vice Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer Signature
Michael LiCalsi, Executive Vice President of
Administration, General Counsel and Secretary Signature



Exhibit B
ESCROW FEES AND EXPENSES

Acceptance Fee
Review/draft escrow agreement, establish account Waived

Annual Fee $2,500

First year Annual Fee will be due and payable prior to execution of the Escrow Agreement.
The Annual Fee will be billed annually in advance.

Fees specified are for the regular, routine services contemplated by the Escrow Agreement, and any additional or extraordinary services,
including, but not limited to disbursements involving a dispute or arbitration, or administration while a dispute, controversy or adverse claim is
in existence, will be charged based upon time required at the then standard hourly rate.

All expenses related to the administration of the Escrow Agreement such as, but not limited to, travel, postage, shipping, courier, telephone,
facsimile, supplies, legal fees, accounting fees, etc., will be reimbursable.



Exhibit C
FORM OF ESCROW RELEASE NOTICE
Date:

UMB Bank, National Association
928 Grand Blvd. 12 Floor

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the terms of Section 3 of the Subscription Escrow Agreement dated as of 20 ___ (as the same may be amended
from time to time, the “Escrow Agreement”), among The Gladstone Companies, Inc. (the “Company”) and UMB Bank, National Association

(the “Escrow Agent”), the Company hereby notifies the Escrow Agent that the closing will be held on for gross proceeds of
s

PLEASE DISTRIBUTE FUNDS BY WIRE TRANSFER (or as indicated) AS FOLLOWS (wire instructions attached):

$
$

Very truly yours,

THE GLADSTONE COMPANIES, INC.
as the Company

By:

Name:

Title:

10



Exhibit 11.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the use in this Annual Report on Form 1-K of our report dated September 28, 2020 relating to the financial statements of The Gladstone Companies, Inc.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, VA
September 28, 2020



